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PART |

Iltem 1. Busines:

WWE is an integrated media and entertainment cosnpéfe have been involved in the sports entertainrbesiness for more than
years, and have developed WWE into one of the mogtlar brands in global entertainment today. Weebtg unique and creative cont
centered around our talent and present it at @ardnd televised events. At the heart of our sicaes the athletic and entertainment skills
appeal of our WWE Superstars and our consistemtigvative and multi-faceted storylines across gants.Anchored by these brands, we
able to leverage our content and talent acrosaaliyt all media outlets. Our live and televised m¢e consumer products, digital media
feature film outlets provide significant croggemotion and marketing opportunities that reinforur brands while effectively reaching
fans.

“WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainment, Inend its subsidiaries, unless the context othervdgeires. References to “we,” “us,
“our” and the “Company” refer to WWE and its subaiies. The initials “WWE"and our stylized and highly distinctive scratchdage two ¢
our trademarks. This report also contains other WivdBemarks and trade names as well as those &f cdmpanies. All trademarks and tr
names appearing in this report are the propertiaf respective holders.

Our operations are centered around the following far business segments:

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te Imvents, sales of merchandise at these live evehwision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feegiéwing our pay-per-view and video on demandyprming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the sales of WWé&dpced home videos and magazine publishing andtieyar license fees relatec
various WWE themed products such as video gamgs aiod books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteRigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Studios
e Revenues consist of receipts from the distributibfilmed entertainment .

Live and Televised Entertainment
(represents 69%, 70% and 63% of our net revenues 8010, 2009 and 2008, respectively)
Live Events

Our three brands, “Monday Night RAW”, “Friddyight SmackDown”, and “WWE NXT”allow us to perform in numerous dome
markets and take advantage of the strong intemmatdlemand for our events. Live events and telemiprogramming are our principal crea
content and production activities. Our creativartadevelops compelling and complex characters aral/esthem into dynamic storylines 1
combine physical and emotional elements. Storyliaes usually played out in the ring and unfold am weekly television shows, a
culminate in our monthly pay-per-view events.

In 2010, we produced 253 live events throughoutiN@merica, entertaining over one million fans ataverage ticket price of $39.46."
hold many of our live events at major arenas acthescountry. In addition to providing the contdat our television and pay-peiew
programming, these events provide us with a rea¢-tassessment of the popularity of our storylimescharacters.

In 2010, we produced 74 live events internationatyaching approximately 600,000 fans at an avetiaget price of $66.47. These eve
were spread over several international tours thtougEurope, Latin America and Australia.
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Live events net revenues were $104.6 million, $808illion and $105.7 million, representing 22%, 23%d 20% of total net revenue:
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Venue Merchandise

Our venue merchandise business consists of thgrdesiurcing, marketing and distribution of numer®dWE-branded products, such
T-shirts, caps and many other novelty items, all bicl feature our Superstars, Divas and/or logoss&htems are offered for sale at our
events.

Venue merchandise net revenues were $18.4 milli®8.,8 million and $18.5 million, representing 4%tatal net revenues in each of 2(
2009 and 2008.

Television Programming

Relying on our inhouse production capabilities, we produce severrshofi original weekly programming, 52 weeks per ry€Ehis
programming is distributed domestically, internatily and via WWE.com. Our domestic programs afdoriday Night RAW” on USA
Network, Telemundo, mun2 and Universal F‘A.M. RAW” on USA Network; “Friday Night SmackDownbn Syfy, mun2, and Univer
HD; “WWE Superstars” on WGN America; and “WWE NX®h WWE.com. WWE programs reach 14 million totalwées during the avera
week. USA Network and the Syfy Channel are owne8liBf Universal.

“Monday Night RAW” is a twohour primetime program that is broadcast live orAUNetwork. It is among the most watched regul
scheduled programs on primetime cable televisioth amchors USA, helping make it a togted network. RAW also airs in replays
Telemundo, mun2 and Universal HD.

The two-hour “Friday Night SmackDowrdirs on Syfy in primetime on Fridays. SmackDowrpadés in replays on mun2 and Unive
HD. SmackDown is Syfy’s most watched, regularlyestiied program.

“WWE Superstars”remains one of the most watched programs on WGN rismeamong households, total viewers and most
demographics.

“WWE NXT” transitioned to WWE.com domestically onc@ber 5, 2010. Since the launch of the micros¢WE NXT” videos hav
generated more than 3.0 million streams.

Each year, more than 7,500 hours of WWEElevision programming can be seen in more t&ncbuntries and 30 languages arount
world. Our broadcast partners include: BSkyB inlthé Ten Sports in India, and J SPORTS in Japamramany others.

The Company has announced that it is exploringfdnemation of a WWE television network as an additibvehicle to distribute o
programming content.

Television rights fee net revenues were $127.0ionill$111.9 million and $100.7 million, represegti7%, 24% and 19% of total |
revenues in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Advertising

We provide sponsorships in the US domestic mankét@anada to meet the needs of our advertisersu@hrthese sponsorships, we ¢
advertisers a full range of our promotional vehsclecluding internet and print advertising, arsignage, on-air announcements and pay-per
view sponsorship. Prior to December 2010, we aidth advertising on our programs in Canada. Staitingecember 2010, these sales are
provided by a licensee.

Advertising and sponsorship net revenues were §8lion, $7.7 million and $7.4 million, represenginl%, 2% and 1% of total r
revenues in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Pay-Per-View Programming

WWE has been the world’s pre-eminent provider gf-par-view programming over the past 27 years.ah®@ WWE televised 13 live pay-
perview events which consistently rank among the héglselling live event programs in the industry. €istent with industry practices,
share the revenues with cable systems and safaltitéders such as DirecTV, and pay service feaBIREMAND and TVN. WWE's annue
crown jewel,WrestleMania, has historically achieved more than one milliamyoworldwide. On March 28, 2010, WWE celebrates 26t
Anniversary of WrestleManiain Phoenix, AZ before a sold-out crowd with millorwatching at homeWrestleMania XXVlachieve:
approximately 900,000 buys and generated approgign&20.5 million in pay-per-view revenue.
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WWE produced 13 domestic pay-per-view progran?010 and 14 in 2009. The suggested domestd pice for all pay-periew event
in 2010 was $44.95, with the exceptionvdfestleManiavhich had a suggested domestic retail price of $&4.

Our international pay-periew partners include SKY in the United Kingdom, 5eutschland in Germany, SKY Perfect TV! in Ja|
SKY ltalia in Italy and Main Event in Australia, amg many others.

Pay-perview net revenues were $70.2 million, $80.0 millimamd $91.4 million, representing 15%, 17% and 17%otal net revenues
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively .

WWE Classics On Demand

WWE Classics On Demand is a Subscription Video @mBnd (SVOD) service that offers highly-rated aedtbelling classic televisic
shows, pay-pewview events, specials and original programmingdanonthly subscription fee. Most of this matergldrawn from WWE
100,000 hour video library and includes other lagdivrestling brands. WWE owns and controls the eanfrom the vast libraries of st
promotions as WCW, ECW and AWA. WWE Classics on Rechsubscribers have access to approximately 4@ lmbeontent each month.

WWE Classics On Demand is currently distributechwliB of the top 20 cable operators in the UniteateSt making WWE Classics
Demand available to approximately 80 percent otsidndemand enabled subscribers. Major North Americatridutors currently includ
Comcast Communications, Cox Communications, Cha@mmunications, Cablevision, Mediacom, and Verifwmmunications, amol
others.

WWE Classics On Demand net revenues were $4.6omiifi 2010, $5.4 million in 2009 and $6.3 millian 2008, representing 1% of tc
net revenues in each of 2010, 2009 and 2008.

Consumer Products
(represents 20%, 21% and 26% of our net revenues 8010, 2009 and 2008, respectively)
Licensing

We have established a worldwide licensing prograimgiour marks and logos, copyrighted works andasttars on a large variety of re
products, including toys, video games, apparell@uks. Currently, we have relationships with mérant 200 licensees worldwide that proy
products for sale at major retailers. To maintdia distinctive style and quality of our intelledtymoperty and brand, we retain crea
approval over the design, packaging, advertisirgmomotional materials associated with these ptsdu

Videogames and toys represent important comporwérdsar licensing program. Beginning on January 1@ we are under a new multi-
year video game license with THQ and a new comprgkie, mult-year licensingagreement with Mattel, Inc. as our new master imgnise¢
covering all global territories.

We have publishing licensing agreements with SidBchuster, Dorling Kindersley, Penguin Books, Beele, and Titan, which allow
to publish original content in a variety of gensesl formats, including fiction, histories, hdw;-comics, and biographies and autobiograp
During 2010, we published five new books and eggmhic book issues, including the autobiography ofd@ust (Dustin Rhodes), a history
the WWE Championship, and a collection of roadistor

Music is an integral part of the entertainment eigee surrounding WWE's live events, televisiomgrams and pay-pefiews. We
compose and record most of our music, including Superstar entrance themes, in our recording stuiaddition to our own compos
music, we license music performed by popular artistusic links the WWE brand to all media platforimsluding television, film, radio, vide
games, live events and other emerging digital telduies.

WWE programming and WWE.com have music woven imfrop-andeoming artists, thus maintaining our commitmentdé&veloping
artists and providing a platform for awarenessn@aadience to which they might not be exposed tjindraditional record company marketing.

Licensing net revenues, including musiewere $51.7 million, $44.7 million and $60.5 milliorepresenting 11%, 9% and 11% of total
revenues in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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Home Videc
In 2010, we released 29 new home video prashetand shipped approximately 3.7 million DVD a@ld-ray units, including catalog titl

released in prior years. Vivendi Entertainmentus domestic home video distributor. Outside thetébhiStates, our new releases and ca
titles are distributed through licensees aroundatbed.

Home video net revenues were $32.1 million, $3%an and $58.5 million, representing 7%, 8% aridd of total net revenues in 20
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Magazine Publishin
The magazine division of WWE consistsWIWE MagazinendWWE Kidsmagazine and several special issues throughoytthre

The flagship title WWE Magazinds a global mers lifestyle publication with native language edian Spain, Mexico, France, Germg
Greece and Turkey. Every issue is filled with feasy photos, exclusive interviews and access #ra Will not see on television. In the |
WWE Magazineeaches more than 5.3 million readers every month.

Our WWE Kidsmagazine was launched in April 2008 and publisteedissues in 2010VWE Kidsalso has licensed editions in the |
Germany, France, Mexico and Turkey.

Magazine publishing net revenues were $11.0 millgi8.5 million and $15.4 million, representing 28%p and 3% of total net revenue:
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Digital Media
(represents 6%, 7% and 7% of our net revenues in 20, 2009 and 2008, respectively)

WWE.com

WWE utilizes the Internet to promote our brandgate a community experience among our fans, marketdistribute our online a
mobile products and sell online advertising. Oumgry website, WWE.com, attracted an average 09 Hillion monthly unique visitol
worldwide during 2010. These visitors viewed anrage of more than 375 million pages and approxim&&.4 million video streams [
month. WWE wallpapers, ringtones, voicetones adeas are available through our mobile partnerships.

WWE currently has location based websites spanhhgountries worldwide where fans can experienceBNi\their own language witt
concentration on events and shows in their reg8ome of the worldwide countries include China, EgrGermany, India, Japan, Pol:
Portugal, Spain and Turkey. Local sales agenciselling ad inventory on wwe.com in over 33 coiestr

WWE currently streams its video content on Hulu.c&fauTube.com, TV.com, and other select video perfBhe wide range of conte
includes full length episodes of “Friday Night SrkBown”, “WWE NXT” and “WWE Superstars”. WWE also fefs shortform clips o
“Monday Night RAW”, “Friday Night SmackDown” andassic content.

WWE.com net revenues were $14.9 million, $16.8iomlland $16.3 million, representing 3%, 4% and 3total net revenues in 20:
2009 and 2008, respectively.

WWEShop
WWEShop is our e-commerce storefront. WWEShop meee over 290,000 orders during 2010 as compar@at@00 in 2009.

WWEShop net revenues were $14.0 million, $16.0iomlland $18.5 million, representing 3%, 3% and 4%otal net revenues in 20:
2009 and 2008, respectively.
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WWE Studios
(represents 4%, 2% and 5% of our net revenues in 20, 2009 and 2008, respectively)

Established in 2002, WWE Studios creates ardified mix of filmed entertainment including tteeal releases and direct-DVD films.
Upcoming releases will feature a wide range of gerincluding familyfriendly comedies, dramas and thrillers. In addititelevision movie
scripted television series, unscripted televisieres, animation, and other projects are poteatizds for development.

WWE Studios has released four feature fill8ee No Evil The Marine, The Condemnedand12 Roundsand two direct-tdVD films,
Behind Enemy Lines: ColumkandThe Marine 2by utilizing third-party distribution partners (“ténsed films”).

In the current year, WWE Studios’ began self-ditting our films, starting with the releasesLegendaryand Knucklehead Legendary,
starring Patricia Clarkson, Danny Glover and WWEp&astar John Cena, was released in September ROl@klehead starring Marl
Feuerstein, Melora Hardin, WWE Superstar Big Shad Rennis Farina was released in October 2010.

WWE Studios remains committed to providing globati@nces familyfriendly filmed entertainment which leverages th&\W& brand
Upcoming films will feature welknown actors and actresses in lead roles suppbyt®dWE Superstars. WWE is slated to produce arehs:
an additional seven films through 2012.

Films currently scheduled for release in 2011 idetu
The Chaperonestarring WWE Superstar Triple H, Ariel Winter, Aabeth Gish and Yeardley Smith is slated for a ralyr2011 release.

That's What | Am starring Ed Harris, Chase Ellison, Molly Park&fWE Superstar Randy Orton, and Amy Madigan is dl&be an Apri
2011 release.

Inside Outstarring Michael Rappaport, Parker Posey, WWE Sigeflriple H and Bruce Dern is scheduled for e 111 release date.

WWE Studios net revenues were $19.6 million, $7ilfian and $24.5 million, representing 4%, 2% ar¥ bf total net revenues in 20
2009 and 2008, respectively.

International

Revenues generated outside of North America wed&.81million for 2010, $127.1 million for 2009 afd35.2 million for 2008. Revent
generated from international sources accounte@8®t of total revenues generated in 2010, 27% ir920@ 26% in 2008. Revenues genel
in the United Kingdom, our largest international rket, were $33.9 million, $36.5 million and $47.3lllon for 2010, 2009 and 20C
respectively.

Creative Development and Production

Headed by our Chairman and Chief Executive Offiséncent K. McMahon, our creative team develops peting and complex charact
and weaves them into dynamic storylines that combimysical and emotional elements. Storylines atally played out in the ring and unf
on our weekly television shows, and culminate im mwnthly pay-periew events. We voluntarily designate the suitabibf each of ot
television shows using standard industry ratingd, @l of our programming carries a PG rating.

Our success is due primarily to the continuing paity of our Superstars and Divas. We currentlyehapproximately 140 Superstars
Divas under exclusive contracts, ranging from raydtar guaranteed contracts with established Supgnstalevelopmental contracts with
Superstars in training. Our Superstars and Divashaghly trained and motivated independent conbractwhose compensation is tied to
revenue that they help generate. We own the righssibstantially all of our characters and exclelsificense the rights we do not own thro
agreements with our Superstars and Divas. We agaitinseek to identify, recruit and develop additibtalent for our business.
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Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal fan base,dhertainment industry is highly competitive andbject to fluctuations in populari
which are not easy to predict. For our live, ted&n, pay-per-view and movie audiences, we facepetition from professional and colle
sports as well as from other forms of live, filmadd televised entertainment and other leisure iieBv We compete with entertainm
companies, professional and college sports leagmes other makers of branded apparel and mercharidiséhe sale of our brand
merchandise. As we continue to expand into thelhighmpetitive digital media market we face incegsompetition from websites offeri
paid and free web-based and wireless content. Mampanies with whom we compete have greater fimhnesources than we do.

Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to all aspectsoof operations, and we expend substantial costeffiodt in an attempt to maintain &
protect our intellectual property and to maintaampliance vis-a-vis other partieisitellectual property. We have a large portfolioredistere
and unregistered trademarks and service marks wigiddand maintain a large catalog of copyrightedkspincluding copyrights in o
television programming, music, photographs, bookagazines and apparel art. A principal focus of effwrts is to protect the intellecti
property relating to our originally created chaeastportrayed by our performers, which encompaBrages, likenesses, names and ¢
identifying indicia of these characters. We alsonocavlarge number of internet website domain nanmeksaperate a network of develog
content-based sites, which facilitate and contgliatthe exploitation of our intellectual propenygridwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual @ndy rights by, among other things, searching titernet to ascertain unauthorized us
our intellectual property, seizing goods that featunauthorized use of our intellectual propertg aaeking restraining orders and/or dam
in court against individuals or entities infringiogr intellectual property rights. Our failure tortail piracy, infringement or other unauthori
use of our intellectual property rights effectivety our infringement of otheritellectual property rights, could adversely affear operatin
results.

Financial Information about Segments

See Note 17 to Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tants, which is included elsewhere in this ForarK1@or financial information abo
each of our segments.

Employees

As of February 2011 we had approximately 585 emg#gy This headcount excludes our Superstars, vehm@ependent contractors. (
in-house production staff is supplemented with comntprsonnel for our television production. We bedighat our relationships with ¢
employees are good. None of our employees aresepied by a union.

Regulation

Live Events

In various states in the United States and sonedoijurisdictions, athletic commissions and otiyeplicable regulatory agencies requir
to obtain licenses for promoters, medical clearareoel/or other permits or licenses for performad/@ permits for events in order for ut
promote and conduct our live events. If we faittonply with the regulations of a particular juristitin, we may be prohibited from promot
and conducting our live events in that jurisdictidme inability to present our live events overextended period of time or in a numbe
jurisdictions could lead to a decline in the vagaevenue streams generated from our live evertishweould adversely affect our opera
results.

Television Programming

The production of television programming by indegemt producers is not directly regulated by the=falor state governments, but
marketplace for television programming in the Udittates and internationally is substantially aéfddoy government regulations applici
to, as well as social and political influences wmtevision stations, television networks and cabid satellite television systems and chan
We voluntarily designate the suitability of eachoof television shows using standard industry gatimand all of our programming carries a
rating. Changes in governmental policy and privsgetor perceptions could further restrict our paogrcontent and adversely affect our le
of viewership and operating results.

Available Information

Copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quayt&¢&ports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forky 8nhd any amendments to th
reports, are available free of charge on our welaihttp://corporate.wwe.coas soon as reasonably practicable after such seaatiiled witl
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). @ports are also available free of charge on t€'Swebsite, http://www.sec.govl he
public may read and copy any materials filed by @mmpany with the SEC at the SECPublic Reference Room at 100 F Street,
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain infaioraon the operation of the Public Reference Rdyntalling the SEC at-80C-SEC-



0330. None of the information on any of our welssigepart of this Annual Report on Form KOOur Corporate Governance Guidelines, C
of Business Conduct and charters of our Audit Cottemiand Compensation Committee are also avai@bleur website. A copy of any
these documents will be mailed to any stockholdighout charge upon request to us at 1241 East Maieet, Stamford, CT 06902, Al

Investor Relations Department.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are inherent risks and uncertainties assutiatth our business that could adversely affectaperating performance and finan
condition. Set forth below are descriptions of thasks and uncertainties that we currently belteviee material, but the risks and uncertai
described below are not the only risks and uncaita that could affect our business. See the dion under Cautionary Statement |
Purposes of the ‘Safe Harbor’ Provisions of thev@®d Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995” itein 7, Managemery’ Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our failure to maintain or renew key agreements cold adversely affect our ability to distribute televsion and pay-perview
programming which could adversely affect our operaing results.

Our television programming is distributed by broasicand cable networks, and our pay-per-view progrieng is distributed by pay-per-
view providers. Because our revenues are generaieectly and indirectly, from the distribution afur televised and pay-p&iew
programming, any failure to maintain or renew agements with these distributors or the failure fof tistributors to continue to prov
services to us could adversely affect our operatasglts. We regularly engage in negotiations irgato substantial agreements covering
distribution of our cable, broadcast and/or paypew television by carriers located in the Unitadt8s and abroad. Over the past several
we have expanded our relationship with NBC Univieraad its subsidiaries currently distribute a migyoof our weekly domestic televisii
programming.

Our failure to continue to develop creative and erdrtaining programs and events would likely lead ta decline in the popularity o
our brand of entertainment and could adversely affet our operating results.

The creation, marketing and distribution of ourelignd televised entertainment, including our payvwew events, is at the core of
business and is critical to our ability to genenseenues across our media platforms and produtgteuOur failure to continue to cre
popular live events and televised programming wdildely lead to a decline in our television ratingsd attendance at our live events, w
would adversely affect our operating results.

Our failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal ofur storylines and the popularity
of our brand of entertainment, which could adverse} affect our operating results.

Our success depends, in large part, upon ouryabdlitecruit, train and retain athletic performenso have the physical presence, ac
ability and charisma to portray characters in owe events and televised programming. We cannotagitiee that we will be able to continur
identify, train and retain these performers in fieire. Additionally, we cannot guarantee that wilt e able to retain our current perform
during the terms of their contracts or when theintcacts expire. Our failure to attract and retedy performers or a serious or untimely in
to, or the death of, or unexpected or premature twsretirement for any reason of, any of our keyfgrmers could lead to a decline in
appeal of our storylines and the popularity of brand of entertainment, which could adversely affer operating results.

The unexpected loss of the services of Vincent K. dahon could adversely affect our ability to createpopular characters anc
creative storylines or could otherwise adversely &ct our operating results.

In addition to serving as Chairman of our BoardDifectors and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. McMahtgads the creative team t
develops the storylines and the characters fortelewvised programming and live events. Mr. McMahfsam time to time, has also been
important member of our cast of performers. The los Mr. McMahon due to unexpected retirement, ldlgg, death or other unexpect
termination for any reason could have a materialeesk effect on our ability to create popular chemes and creative storylines or cc
otherwise adversely affect our operating results.
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A decline in general economic conditions or disrupbn of financial markets may, among other things, educe the discretionar
income of consumers or erode advertising markets,hich could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by general ecoo@amditions, which affect consumedisposable income. The demand for entertainmer
leisure activities tends to be highly sensitivehte level of consumers’ disposable income. Declinggenerakconomic conditions could redt
the level of discretionary income that our fans antential fans have to spend on our live and iséel/entertainment and consumer prod
which could adversely affect our revenues. Volgtiand disruption of financial markets could linoitir clients’, licensees’ and distributors’
ability to obtain adequate financing to maintairegtions and result in a decrease in sales volimaecbuld have a negative impact on
business, financial condition and results of openat Our television partners derive revenues from oogmmming by the sale of advertisi
and we sell advertising directly on our website andur magazines. Softness in the advertising ptarldue to a weak economic environr
or otherwise, could adversely affect our revenueb® financial viability of our distributors.

Our accounts receivable represent a significant poion of our current assets and relate principally b a limited number of
distributors, increasing our exposure to bad debtsnd potentially impacting our results of operations

A substantial portion of our accounts receivablke faom distributors of our pay-petew, television, home video and magazine prod
Adverse changes in general economic conditionsoamahtraction in global credit markets could ppéeaite liquidity problems among our k
distributors. This could increase our exposureogsés from bad debts and have a material adveisg efi our business, financial condit
and results of operations.

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sportsentertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political climate
could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumer tastegarsitainment trends, which are unpredictable aibjest to change and may be affe
by changes in the social and political climate. Programming is created to evoke a passionate nsgpivom our fans. Changes in our fans’
tastes or a material change in the perceptionsiobosiness partners, including our distributord Brensees, whether as a result of the s
and political climate or otherwise, could adversaffgct our operating results.

Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related prate sector initiatives could adversely affect oubusiness.

While the production of television programming bbglépendent producers is not directly regulatechbyféderal or state governments in
United States, the marketplace for television progning in the United States is affected signifiahy government regulations applicable
as well as social and political influences on,\&i®n stations, television networks and cable saigtllite television systems and channels
voluntarily designate the suitability of each ofr ¢elevision shows using standard industry ratirgs] all of our programming currently he
PG rating. Domestic and foreign governmental andape-sector initiatives relating to the content of megiagramming are announced fr
time to time. Changes in these governmental paligied privatesector perceptions could further restrict our pangrcontent and advers
affect our levels of viewership and operating resul

The markets in which we operate are highly competive, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedand we may not be able t
compete effectively, especially against competitonsith greater financial resources or marketplace pesence, which could adverse
affect our operating results.

For our live events, television and pay-péw audiences, we face competition from professi@md college sports, as well as from c
forms of live and televised entertainment and otbisure activities in a rapidly changing and irmsiagly fragmented marketplace. The ma
in which audio/video content is distributed andweel is constantly changing, and while we attemptisiribute our content across
platforms, our failure to continue to do so effeely could adversely affect our operating resuiist the sale of our consumer products
compete with entertainment companies, professiandlcollege sports leagues and other makers ofledaapparel and merchandise. Man
the companies with whom we compete have greatendial resources than we do.

Our failure to compete effectively could result ansignificant loss of viewers, venues, distributidmnnels or performers and fe'
entertainment and advertising dollars spent orfaumn of sports entertainment, any of which couldexdely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with internationaiharkets.

Our production of live events overseas subject® tise risks involved in foreign travel and locegulations, including regulations requir
us to obtain visas for our performers. In additithhese live events and the licensing of our telemisand consumer products in internatic
markets expose us to some degree of currencylntknational operations may be subject to politicatability inherent in varying degrees
those markets. These risks could adversely affactoperating results and impair our ability to pueur business strategy as it relate
international markets.
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We may be prohibited from promoting and conductingour live events if we do not comply with applicableegulations.

In the United States and some foreign jurisdicticatbletic commissions and other applicable regwaggencies require us to obi
licenses for promoters, medical clearances andtar@ermits or licenses for performers and/or psrifior events in order for us to prom
and conduct our live events. In the event that aikté comply with the regulations of a particujarisdiction, we may be prohibited frc
promoting and conducting our live events in thatsgiction. The inability to present our live everdver an extended period of time or
number of jurisdictions could lead to a declinghie various revenue streams generated from ouelreats, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Because we depend upon our intellectual property ghts, our inability to protect those rights, or our infringement of others’
intellectual property rights, could adversely affet our business.

Our inability to protect our large portfolio of ttamarks, service marks, copyrighted material araraghiers, trade names and ¢
intellectual property rights from piracy, countetifeg or other unauthorized use could negativelig@tfour business. Intellectual propert
material to all aspects of our operations, and xperd substantial cost and effort in an attemph&intain and protect our intellectual prop:
and to maintain compliance vis-a-vis other partietllectual property. We have a large portfolioredistered and unregistered trademarks
service marks worldwide and maintain a large cgtadd copyrighted works, including copyrights to dielevision programming, mus
photographs, books, magazines and apparel artin&ipal focus of our efforts is to protect the ifgetual property relating to our origina
created characters portrayed by our performersgiwihcompasses images, likenesses, names anddethifying indicia of these characte
We also own a large number of Internet website domames and operate a network of developed, cohesed sites, which facilitate ¢
contribute to the exploitation of our intellectymbperty worldwide.

Our failure to curtail piracy, infringement or othenauthorized use of our intellectual propertyhtiggeffectively, or our infringement
others’ intellectual property rights, could advéysa&fect our operating results.

We could incur substantial liabilities if pending itigation is resolved unfavorably.

We are currently a party to civil litigation, whici concluded adversely to our interests, couldeasely affect our operating results. In
ordinary course of business we become subjectriougacomplaints and litigation matters. The outeoofi litigation is inherently difficult t
assess and quantify, and the defense against Riofs ©r actions can be costly. Any adverse judgrsemificantly in excess of our insurai
coverage could adversely affect our financial cbadior results of operations.

We could incur substantial liability in the event d accidents or injuries occurring during our physically demanding events.

We hold numerous live events each year. This sdhezhposes our performers and our employees whinaodved in the production
those events to the risk of travel and performaet&ted accidents, the consequences of which mapedully covered by insurance. 1
physical nature of our events exposes our perfartethe risk of serious injury or death. Althoumir performers, as independent contrac
are responsible for maintaining their own healisallility and life insurance, we satfsure medical costs for our performers for injariba
they incur while performing. We also sdatfsure a substantial portion of any other liabitityat we could incur relating to such injuries. hilay
to us resulting from any death or serious injurgtained by one of our performers while performitagthe extent not covered by our insura
could adversely affect our business, financial diow and operating results.

Our live events entail other risks inherent in pubic live events.

We hold numerous live events each year, both décadigtand internationally. Certain risks are indwetrin large events of this type as\
as the travel to and from them. Although we belieeetake appropriate safety and financial precastia connection with our events, poss
difficulties could occur including air and land ¥& interruption or accidents, the spread of ilfésjuries resulting from building problems
other equipment malfunction, violence, local laBtiikes and other “force majeurg/pe events. These issues could result in cancelledt
and other disruptions to our business as welladslily to other parties, any of which could adwdysaffect our financial condition or results
operation.
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We will continue to face certain risks relating toour feature film business.

We have substantial capitalized film costs. Thesgitalized costs are reflected net of certain petida tax incentives granted by vari
governmental authorities. Our ability to realizesh credits may be limited by changes in the latisi governing the incentives and/or
economic environment. The inability to realize thesedits would have the effect of increasing otgrall production costs. Additionally, t
accounting for our film business in accordance vg#nerally accepted accounting principles entagsificant judgment used to deve
estimates of expected future revenues from filfhexpected revenue for one or moreair films does not materialize because audi
demand does not meet expectations, our estimatethues may not be sufficient to recoup our inveatnie the film. If actual revenues
lower than our estimated revenues or if costs ayleeln than expected, we may be required to recorign@airment charge and write down
capitalized costs of the film. Under our historistdbution model, we participate in revenue aftar distribution partners recoup their cost
distribution, including print and advertising. Ifiitem performance does not generate sufficient ipgsdo recoup these distribution expenses
would be obligated to reimburse our distributiomtpar for any deficit. Under our current distritartimodel, we selflistribute and market o
films. While we believe that this model will bettBr our business needs, allowing us greater comtréhe ultimate success of our films,
assurances can be given that we will be succeissthis regard.

Through his beneficial ownership of a substantial rajority of our Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon ca exercise control ove
our affairs, and his interests may conflict with tte holders of our Class A common stock.

We have Class A common stock and Class B commai.sithe holders of Class A common stock generalyetrights identical to holde
of Class B common stock, except that holders o§€k common stock are entitled to one vote perestaard holders of Class B common s
are entitled to ten votes per share. Holders df btatsses of common stock generally will vote thgets a single class on all matters pres:
to stockholders for their vote or approval, exapbtherwise required by applicable Delaware law.

A substantial majority of the issued and outstagdihares of Class B common stock is owned benbyidig Vincent K. McMahon. Mi
McMahon controls approximately 88% of the votingygo of the issued and outstanding shares of oumtmmstock. Through his benefic
ownership of a substantial majority of our Classd@nmon stock, Mr. McMahon effectively can exerctsmtrol over our affairs, and |
interest could conflict with the holders of our &aA common stock. In addition, the voting poweiMsf McMahon through his ownership
our Class B common stock could discourage othens finitiating potential mergers, takeovers or otbleange of control transactions. A
result, the market price of our Class A commonlistmuld decline.

To the extent the Companys distributions represent a return of capital for tax purposes, shareholders will recognize an increed
capital gain upon a subsequent sale of the ComparsyCommon Stock.

The Company believes that its aggregate dividesttidutions paid in 2010 were in excess of its entrand accumulated earnings
profits for that year calculated under applicaliiteinal Revenue Code (“IRCProvisions. Under the IRC, distributions in exce$doth thi
Company’s current earnings and profits and the Gomis accumulated earnings and profits will constituteeturn of capital and will redu
the stockholder’s adjusted tax basis in its Comi@tock. If a stockholdes’ adjusted basis in its Common Stock is reducextito, these exce
distributions would thereafter constitute a capjiaih to the stockholder.

Our dividend is significant and is affected by a nmber of factors, including the decision by membersf the McMahon family as tc
whether or not to renew the dividend waiver.

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates the Canys Common Stock dividend policy and determines tlelend rate each quart
The level of dividends will continue to be influettby many factors, including, among other thirms, liquidity and historical and project
cash flow, our strategic plan (including alternativses of capital), our financial results and ctiowli contractual and legal restrictions on
payment of dividends, general economic and conmpetitonditions and such other factors as our Beéfdirectors may consider relevant fr
time to time , including the waiver, if any, by tMeMahon family of a portion of the dividend$n February 2008, the Company increase
quarterlydividend from $0.24 to $0.36 per share. At thaktitthe McMahon family and their trusts entered emtcagreement with the Compi
to waive the increased portion of the dividenddiishares of Class A and Class B common stockfluéeléy held by the family for a period
three years. Instead, they continued to receivaaaterly cash dividend of $0.24 per share. Thisverahas now expired. Angew dividen:
waiver is subject to two things. The first is tleeeipt of the approval of the Internal Revenue Berwhich has beeobtained. The second
the agreement of members of the McMahon family. détermination has been made by the McMahon familgnter into a new waiv
agreement. We cannot assure our stockholders ithidedds will be paid in the future, or that, ifidadividends will be at the same amour
with the same frequency as in the past. Any redaodti our dividend payments could have a negatffeceon our stock price. Over the |
three calendar years, the Compangumulative dividend payment totaled $247.3 milliand its cash from operating activities less
purchases of property plant and equipment totalé® R million.
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We could face a variety of risks if we expand intmew and complementary businesses.

We have entered into new or complementary busisgéagbe past and may do so again in the futurek€Ref expansion may include, am
other risks: potential diversion of managemendttention and other resources, including avaladdsh, from our existing busines
unanticipated liabilities or contingencies; redueagnings due to increased amortization, impairrobatges and other costs; competition 1
other companies with more experience in such basew and possible additional regulatory requirésnand compliance costs. In this reg
the Company has announced that it is explorindgdhmaation of a WWE television network.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for sal by Mr. McMahon and members of his family or truss established for thei
benefit, and the sale of those shares could lowenmstock price.

All of the issued and outstanding shares of ClagsoBmon stock are held by Vincent McMahon and othembers of the McMah
family and trusts set up for these family memb&ales of substantial amounts of these shareseogpefhception that such sales could o«
may lower the prevailing market price of our Classommon stock. If any sales or transfers of CBs®mmon stock were to occur to pers
outside of the McMahon family, the shares wouldenatically convert into Class A common stock.

Our Class A common stock has a relatively small puiz “float.”

Historically, as a result of our relatively smalllgic float, our Class A common stock has been leggd than the common stock
companies with broader public ownership, and thditg prices for our Class A common stock have lmere volatile than generally may
the case for more widelgeld common stock. Among other things, trading oflatively small volume of our Class A common &totay hav
a greater impact on the trading price of our CRRg®mmon stock than would be the case if our pultdiat were larger.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.
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Item 2. Properties

We have executive offices, television and musicording studios, posgtroduction operations and warehouses at locatinnerinea
Stamford, Connecticut. We also have offices in Newk and Los Angeles, and have regional internatiaffices in London, Tokyo, Shang

and Singapore. We own the buildings in which ouecexive and administrative offices, our televisemd music recording studios and
production operations are located. We lease spaaauf sales offices, WWE Studios office and oflaeilities.

Our principal properties consist of the following:

Square Expiration Date
Facility Location Feet Owned/Lease( of Lease
Executive offices Stamford, CT 114,30( Owned —
Production studio Stamford, CT 39,00( Owned —
Studio space Stamford, CT 7,00( Leased Various through September 2(
WWE Studios office Los Angeles, C, 11,00( Leased April 2020
Sales offices Various 10,00( Leased Various through October 2015

All of the facilities listed above are utilized all segments of our business, Live and TelevisettrEainment, Consumer Products
Digital Media segments, with the exception of theW& Studios office in Los Angeles, which focusesoomn WWE Studios segment.

In order to allow for future growth we have perfaunthe initial planning for an expansion of ouetésion production facility. Howeve
management has elected to delay the start of amtrewtion project.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding

World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for Nature artsl American affiliate, the World Wildlife Fund (dettively, the “Fund”)instituted lege
proceedings against us in the English High Cowekisgy injunctive relief and unspecified damagesdieged breaches of a 1994 agreel
between the Fund and us regarding the use of thalsn'wwif”. In August 2001, a High Court judge granted the Fanabtion for summa
judgment, holding that we breached the agreemenidinyg the initials“'wwf” in connection with certain of our website addressed ou
former scratch logo. The English Court of Appeddseguently upheld that ruling. As a result we atgiect to an injunction barring us, eit
directly or indirectly, from most uses of the ial§ “wwf.”

As part of its original complaint, the Fund inclada damages claim. On October 29, 2004, the Fuled di claim for, among other thin
substantial monetary claims in an amount calcula@®d royalty based on certain percentages of mfitpover the period January 1¢
through November 2002. The English courts haveetkttie Fund’s claim for profitased damages. We strongly believe that the Fusichd
suffered any loss or damage, and would vigorousfemtl against any other type of damage claim ifRined attempted, after so many year
amend its complaint to assert one. Based upon ehisidns of the English courts, we do not belidvis matter will have a material adve
effect on our financial condition, results of ogeas or liquidity.

IPO Class Action

In December 2001, a purported class action comipleérs filed against us and certain of our offidarshe United States District Court
the Southern District of New York alleging violat® of federal securities laws relating to our alifpublic offering in 1999. According to t
claims, the underwriters, who were also named &sndants, allegedly engaged in manipulative prastisy, among other things, peHinc
allotments of shares of our stock in return forigolbsed, excessive commissions from the purchasafr entering into after-market fre-
arrangements to artificially inflate the Compasystock price. The complaint further alleges that kmew or should have known of s
unlawful practices. In or around March 2009, thetipa agreed to a global settlement of the litigatin its entirety. On April 2, 2009, t
plaintiffs filed a motion for preliminary approvaf settlement, which was granted by the court ljeodated June 10, 2009. On Octobr
2009, the court granted final approval of the sat#nt agreement, and various objectors have fidides to appeal this decision. The Comy
is a party to the settlement and is not one ofptimties appealing the settlemean&ipproval. We are unable to predict whether thppeals wi
be successful, but assuming they are unsuccessfulh@ settlement is completed, no financial obliggahas been or will be incurred by
Company.
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Other Matters

We are not currently a party to any other matdeghl proceedings. However, we are involved in ssvether suits and claims in 1
ordinary course of business, the outcome of whicimat expected to have a material adverse effeausnfinancial condition, results
operations or liquidity. We may from time to timedmme a party to other legal proceedings.

Item 4. (Removed and reserve

14




Table of Contents
PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Class A common stock trades on the Nevk&tock Exchange under the symbol “WWE.”

The following table sets forth the high and the Isade prices for the shares of Class A common sascleported by the New York St
Exchange and the dividends paid on shares of @Glasgl Class B common stock for the periods inditate

Fiscal Year 2010

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 3( December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 181 $ 189" $% 16.5 $ 1490 % 18.9!
Low $ 1547 $ 128 $ 135( $ 1322 $ 12.8¢
Class A dividends paid per share $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 03¢ $ 1.44
Class B dividends paid per share $ 022 $ 024 $ 022 $ 024 $ 0.9¢
Fiscal Year 2009
Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 3( December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 122: $ 1428 $ 1528 $ 165¢ $  16.5¢
Low $ 89¢ $ 103¢ $ 119 $ 13.0¢ ¢ 8.9¢
Class A dividends paid per share $ 03 $ 03¢ $ 03 $ 03¢ $ 1.4¢
Class B dividends paid per share $ 022 $ 024 $ 02 $ 024 $ 0.9¢

There were 9,843 holders of record of Class A comstock and six holders of record of Class B comrmstarck on February 1, 20:
Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Dimrst and Chief Executive Officer, controls approxieitya88% of the voting power of t
issued and outstanding shares of our common stdokugh the beneficial ownership of a substantiajamity of our Class B common sto
Mr. McMahon can effectively exercise control over affairs. If any sales were to occur, the sharesld automatically convert into Clas:
common stock.

In February 2008, the Company increased its quartéridend from $0.24 to $0.36 per share. At ttiate, the McMahon family and th
trusts entered into an agreement with the Companyaive the increased portion of the dividend fbshares of Class A and Class B comi
stock beneficially held by the family for a periofithree years. Instead, they continued to receigearterly cash dividend of $0.24 per st
This waiver has now expired. Any new dividend wailgesubject to two things. The first is theceipt of the approval of the Internal Reve
Service, which has been obtained. The second iagheement of members of the McMahon family. No wcheteation has been made by
McMahon family to enter into a new waiver agreement

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates the Canys Common Stock dividend policy and determines thi@end rate each quart
The level of dividends will continue to be influettby many factors, including, among other thiras, liquidity and historical and project
cash flow, our strategic plan (including alternativses of capital), our financial results and ctiowlji contractual and legal restrictions on
payment of dividends, general economic and competitonditions and such other factors as our Boidirectors may consider relevant fr
time to time , including the waiver, if any, by thécMahon family of a portion of the dividends. Wannot assure our stockholders
dividends will be paid in the future, or that, ifid, dividends will be at the same amount or wite same frequency as in the past.
reduction in our dividend payments could have atieg effect on our stock price.

15




Table of Contents

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN CHART

Set forth below is a line graph comparing, for pleegiod commencing April 30, 2005 and ending Decen®ie 2010, the cumulative total ret
on our Class A common stock compared to the cuimelébtal return of the Russell 2000 Index and S&évies and Entertainment Index
published industry index. The graph assumes thesinvent of $100 at the close of trading of Apri] 3005 in our Class A common stock,
Russell 2000 Index and the S&P Movies and Entartaimt Index and the reinvestment of all dividends.
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16




Table of Contents
Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain informatiaith respect to securities authorized for issuameger equity compensation plans a
December 31, 2010.

Number of securities Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon Weighted-average available for future issuance
exercise of outstandin exercise price of under equity compensation
options, warrants outstanding options plans (excluding securities
Plan Category and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
@ (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders :
1999 Long Term Incentive Plan
Stock options 71,96¢ $ 13.4¢ -
Restricted stock units 102,50: N/A -
2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan
Performance and Restricted stock units 1,025,12: N/A 3,044,20!
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders N/A N/A N/A
Total 1,199,59 3,044,20!

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat

The following table sets forth our selected finahclata for the years ended December 31, 2010,rBleee31, 2009, December 31, 2
and December 31, 2007, the eight month transitenog ended December 31, 2006 and the fiscal yeded April 30, 2006. The selec
financial data as of December 31, 2010 and Dece®be?009 and for the years ended December 31, ZDddember 31, 2009 and Decen
31, 2008 have been derived from the audited caesigld financial statements included elsewhereinAhnual Report. The selected finan
data as of December 31, 2008, December 31, 2003 rbiger 31, 2006 and April 30, 2006 and for the yeated December 31, 2007, the €
month transition period ended December 31, 2006 femwdl year ended April 30, 2006 have been derifrech our audited consolidat
financial statements, which are not included irs tAinnual Report. You should read the selected @iighrdata in conjunction with o
consolidated financial statements and related natelsthe information set forth under “Managememiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations” containedvels®e in this Annual Report.

Financial Highlights: (in millions)

For the periods For the period
ended December 31, ended April 3C

2010 (1. 2009 (2)(3 2008 (4, 2007 (4, T 2006 (5 2006
Net revenue $477.7 $ 4752 $526.F $485.7 $ 262¢ S 400.1
Operating income $82: $ 771 $70: $68<4Z $ 392 % 70.t
Income from continuing operations $53f $ 50 $454 $521 $ 31€ $ 47.C
Net income $53E $ 50 $454 $521 $ 31€ % 47.C
Earnings per share, basic $072 $ 068 $06z $07: $ 04t % 0.6¢
Earnings per share, diluted $071 $ 068 $06z $072 $ 044 % 0.67
Dividends paid per Class A share $144 $ 14 $144 $09 $ 07z $ 0.72
As of December 31, As of April 30,

2010 2009 2008 2007 T 2006 2006
Cash and short-term investments $166.¢ $ 208.: $177.C $266.. $ 2482 $ 280
Total assets $415.7 $ 440.€ $429.« $470.1 $ 453 3 479.4
Total debt $ 28 $ 3¢ $ 49 $ 58 $ 67 9% 7.2
Total stockholders’ equity $316.7 $ 337.C $360.C $383.. $385.7 $  396.c
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(1) Operating income in 2010 includes the benefit oB$Hillion ($5.1 million, net of tax) related todentives received relating to televisi
other productions and infrastructure spending.d8leze Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Staten

(2) Operating income in 2009 includes the benefit aB$8illion ($5.3 million, net of tax) related todentives received relating to televis
and other productions. Please see Note 11 to thedlidated Financial Statemer

(3) Operating income in 2009 includes a charge of $fiilion ($4.7 million, net of tax) relating to arll@vance recorded agains
receivable due from a previous distribution part

(4) Operating income includes film impairment chargé$h9 million ($1.2 million, net of tax) in 200&lating toSee No Eviand $15.
million ($10.7 million, net of tax) in 2007 relagrto The Condemne. Please see Note 7 to the Consolidated Finantagi8ents

(5) In June 2006, WWE changed its fiscal year to antide basis beginning with calendar 2007. Due tocttenge to a calendar year ¢
we established an eight month transition periodnfiday 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006. The redudm this time period a
referred to throughout this report“2006 transition peric’, “T 200€”, or the“transition perio”.

Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in confimt with the audited consolidated financial stagems and related notes inclu
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Background
The following analysis outlines all material acties contained within each of our four segments.

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te levents, sales of merchandise at these live evevision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video-on-demandgpamming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the sales of WWé&dpced home videos and magazine publishing andtieyar license fees relatec
various WWE themed products such as video gamgs aiod books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Studios
e Revenues consist of receipts from the distributibfimed entertainment .

We provide updated information on the key @rév of our business including live event attendampag/-perview buys, home vide
shipments, website traffic, and online merchandiaes on a monthly basis on our corporate webgife//lsorporate.wwe.com Suct
information is not incorporated herein by reference
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2010 compared to Year End€&kcember 31, 2009 (dollars in millions)

Summary

Net Revenues 2010 2009
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 331.i $ 335.
Consumer Products 97.4 99.7
Digital Media 28.€ 32.¢
WWE Studios 19.€ 7.7
Total $ 477 $ 475.:
Cost of Revenues 2010 2009
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 197« $ 191c¢
Consumer Products 41.7 41t
Digital Media 16.C 18.5
WWE Studios 19.2 3.9
Total $ 274: $ 255:¢
Profit contribution margin 43% 46%
Operating Income 2010 2009
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 119. $ 1247
Consumer Products 50.C 52.7
Digital Media 5.C 5.8
WWE Studios (1.9) 2.2
Corporate (90.2) (108.%)
Operating income $  82: $ 171
Income from operations $ 53.t $ 50.2

The comparability of our results for the catrgear as compared to the prior year is impactedusr WWE Studiosbusiness change t
selfdistribution model starting in the third quartertbé current year. Under this model, we recognezemnues and expenses for our films
gross basis upon release. During the current yeareleased two films under this self-distributiondal, Legendaryand Knucklehead We
previously released six films that were distributed thirdparty distribution partners whereby we participaiadrevenues upon thi
recoupment of distribution expenses and fees. Aesalt, the revenue and related expenses weredest@n a net basis after the distribwtor’
recoupment, which typically occurred in periodssduent to the filng initial release. In the current year, we recor§i@@® million in revenu
and $11.5 million in cost of revenue related to ealf-distributed films. Included in the cost of revenge$5.3 million of amortization
production costs and $6.2 million of distributioglated expenses.

During the current year, film and television protioic incentives from various governmental programese received, relating to qualifi
production activities and an infrastructure projét a result, operating income was positively iotpd by $7.9million in the current year .
compared to $8.3 million in the prior year. Thedwction incentives were recorded as an offset éorétiated production activity; according
we reduced cost of revenues by $4.0 million an@® $&illion in the current and prior year, respediiyand selling, general and administra
expenses by $2.2 million and $3.3 million in thereat and prior year, respectively. The infrastuuetincentive was recorded as a reductic
the related asset, however, as the credit relatadgets placed in service in prior years, a $llliombenefit was recorded in the current yee
a reduction to depreciation for previously recogdiexpense associated with the reduction of tlaettlasset cost.

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment wasaated by declines in our live events and payyer businesses, offset by hig
television rights fees in both domestic and intéamal markets. Our Consumer Products segment exmed strong growth in our licens
business primarily driven by our new master toerisee, Mattel, offset by declines in our home videsiness. Digital Media revent
declined from the prior year, primarily as a resdltleclines in wireless and advertising revenues.
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Our current year results continue to be adversalyacted by the continued weakness in the overalh@uic environment. We belie
certain key metrics, including live event attendaaad pay-per-view buys were impacted by transtisithin our talent roster.

Revenues derived from international sources reptede28% and 27% of total net revenues in 20102808, respectively.
Live and Televised Entertainment

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmnhsegment:

Revenues- Live and Televised Entertainment (dollarg millions except where noted) 2010 2009
Live events $ 104.€ $ 108.¢
North America $ 64.7 $ 67.¢
International $ 39.¢ $ 41.C
Number of North American events 258 26¢
Total live event attendance 2,155,70 2,383,80
Average North American attendance 6,30( 6,50(
Average North American ticket price (dolars $ 39.4¢ $ 37.6¢
Number of international events 74 74
Average international attendance 7,80C 8,50(
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 66.47 $ 66.0¢
Venue merchandise $ 18.4 $ 19.¢
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 9.8( $ 9.5¢
Pay-per-view $ 70.2 $ 80.C
Number of pay-per-view events 13 14
Number of buys of pay-per-views 3,631,10! 4,490,20!
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 18.3: $ 17.2¢
Domestic retail price, excludivgrestleManig(dollars) $ 44.9¢ $ 39.9¢
Domestic retail pricé&/restleManig(dollars) $ 54.9¢ $ 54.9¢
Television rights fees $ 127.( $ 111.¢
Domestic $ 81.€ $ 72.¢
International $ 45.4 $ 39.1
Television advertising $ 5.9 $ 7.7
WWE Classics on Demand $ 4.6 $ 5.4
Other $ 1.1 $ 14
Total $ 331.¢ $ 335.(
Ratings:
Average weekly household ratings for RAW 3.5 3.7
Average weekly household ratings for Smackbo 1.8 2.C
Average weekly household ratings for WWE &sfars 1.1 1.3
Cost of Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainmend¢llars in millions) 2010 2009
Live events $ 77.2 $ 74.€
Venue merchandise 10.4 11.1
Pay per view 30.4 32.t
Television rights 69.7 65.7
Television advertising 15 0.8
WWE Classics on Demand 14 0.8

Other 6.8 6.3




Total $ 197. $ 191.¢
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Live events revenues decreased by $4.2 milliohéncurrent year compared to the prior year primasl a result of a decrease in attend
and 15 fewer North American events. Our average attecelalecreased to 6,300 as compared to 6,500 ipritveyear while internation
attendance decreased to 7,80C@spared to 8,500 in the prior year. We believe thécline in attendance is primarily due to thegitior
within our talent roster. The decline in the numbedomestic events is primarily due to touringiftigs. Cost of revenues for live events
adversely impacted by approximately $1.0 millioncivsts related to the Icelandic volcano, as welsh$® million in higher venue relat
expenses, as we held ten additional events at premenues in the current year as compared to floe year which have higher associe
costs. The live events profit contribution margetceased to 26% from 31% in the prior year.

Venue merchandise revenues were adversely impagtéide decreased attendance in the current yeeorapared to the prior year. T
decline was partially offset by a 2% increase in gegpita spending by our fans. Cost of revenuessémue merchandise decreased by
million primarily due to decreased sales. The vemeechandise profit contribution margin was 43%hia current year as compared to 44¢
the prior year.

Pay-perview revenues reflect 3.6 million buys in the catrgear as compared to 4.5 million buys in the pyiear. In 2010, our prem
annual pay-per-view evenlyrestleMania XXV] generated 0.9 million buys as compared to 1.0anibuys forWrestleMania XX\th 2009. A
a result of the decreased buys, payyiew revenues decreased by $9.8 million in theeniryear as compared to the prior year. We be
this decline is due to the transition within ouetd roster, the absence of several prominent mesydfeour talent roster at certain pay-péw
events, the production of one less pay+yiew event in the current year as compared to tier gear and weakness in the economy.
revenue decline was partially offset by an incrdasthe suggested domestic retail price of our nainestleManiapay-perview events fror
$39.95 to $44.95 in January 2010. Domestic buyschwhenerate a higher price per buy, represents 6flébtal buys in the current year
compared to 63% in the prior year. Pay-piw cost of revenues decreased by $2.1 millicthécurrent year as compared to the prior yea
to the absence of one event and declines associateddecreased revenues. The payyiew profit contribution margin was 57% in -
current year as compared to 59% in the prior year.

Television rights fees increased by $15.1 milliorthie current year as compared to the prior yedmraftect increases both in domestic
international markets. Domestically, televisionhtig fees increased by $8.8 million primarily duddworable renewals of previous contre
contractual increases with our television partneesy agreements with television partners and tbduymtion of four additional special episo
during the current year as compared to the priar.ylaternationally, television rights fees incre@gdy $6.3 million primarily due to a favora
renewal of a contract with a key television partapd contractual increases with other televisioringas. Television rights cost of reven
increased primarily due to increases in productiosts of $4.0 million due to six additional TV epies produced in the current year
increased headcount for production staff. In addijtwe received $0.7 million less in production tagdits in the current year compared tc
prior year. Television rights profit contributionamgin increased to 45% from 41% in the prior year.

Television advertising revenues are comprised efghle of advertising on our Canadian televisiomgmams and the sale of integre
sponsorship packages. In the current year, teteviadvertising revenues decreased by $1.8 milliimarily due to a decline in sponsors
advertising revenue, driven by lower sponsorshilessarelated to pay-petiew events. Television advertising cost of revenircrease
primarily due to the higher costs associated witli mtegrated sponsorship packages. Television rédivey profit contribution marg
decreased to 75% from 88% in the prior year.

WWE Classics on Demand, our subscription basedvittedemand service, generated 15% lower revenues ioutlient year reflecting
15% decline in average monthly domestic subscrib#les believe these declines in subscribers arsudtref weakness in the economy. W
Classics on Demand cost of revenue increased Ifyrllion in the current year as compared to therpyrear due to lower tax credits recei
as compared to the prior year. WWE Classics on Denpaofit contribution margin decreased to 70% fi®886 in the prior year.
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Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Consumer Products segmendiaf@an millions):

Revenues- Consumer Products 2010 2009
Licensing $ 51.7 $ 44.7
Magazine publishing $ 11.C $ 13.F
Net units sold 3,068,00! 4,026,301
Home video $ 32.1 $ 39.4
Gross units 3,742,73 3,531,46
Other $ 2.6 $ 2.1
Total $ 97.4 $ 99.7
Cost of Revenues-Consumer Products 2010 2009
Licensing $ 13.2 $ 11.C
Magazine publishing $ 10.2 $ 11.1
Home video $ 16.1 $ 17.7
Other $ 2.C $ 1.7
Total $ 41.7 $ 41.F
Profit contribution margin 57% 58%

Licensing revenues increased by $7.0 million in¢berent year as compared to the prior year prisndtie to a strong performance by
new master toy licensee, Mattel. Our toy categmgnising revenues increased by $9.3 million pritpatiiven by Mattels increased prodt
offerings. Our video game category licensing rewsndecreased by $3.0 million because the prior peaefited from the release of
additional video game titld,egends of WrestleManidgr which there was no comparable release in threentiyear. The licensing prof
contribution margin was 74% in the current yeac@®pared to 75% in the prior year.

Magazine publishing revenues declined $2.5 milliothe current year as compared to the prior yeartd a 24% decrease in net units ¢
Our sell-through rates decreased to 31% from 36%hénprior year. We published 13 issuesMVE Magazineand 10 issues dVWE Kid:
Magazine in both the current and prior year. We algblished 6 special issues in both the curredtmior year. Magazine publishing cos
revenues decreased by 7% as a result of a 10%adecie production levels, partially offset by fixedsts. The profit contribution mari
decreased to 6% from 18% in the prior year

Home video revenues decreased by $7.3 million énctirrent year due to decreased gelbugh rates and a decline in our average s
price. Our home video seltwough rates decreased to 55% in the current ggarompared to 67% in the prior year, partiallyaagsult ¢
challenges experienced with our talent transitmoypled with an overall decline in the home videduistry. The decrease in average se
price was due to increased discounting and chaingth® product mix. We released 29 titles in therent year as compared to 28 in the |
year. Home video cost of revenues decreased diosviey sales offset by increased distribution expsrdue to changing distribution partn
The profit contribution margin decreased to 50%nfr86% in the prior year.

Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsdor Digital Media segment (dollars in millionxcept average revenues per order):

Revenues- Digital Media 2010 2009
WWE.com $ 14¢ 16.€
WWEShop 14.C 16.C
Total $ 28¢ $ 32.¢
Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars) $ 47.1. % 51.8
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Cost of Revenues-Digital Media 2010 2009
WWE.com $ 5.2 $ 6.9
WWEShop 10.¢ 11.€
Total $ 16.( $ 18.!
Profit contribution margin 45% 44%

WWE.com revenue decreased by $1.9 million in theecu year as compared to the prior year due tdirdecin advertising sold on ¢
website and wireless revenue. The declines in &direy revenue reflect the downturn in the gene@nomic environment and contini
difficulties monetizing our website. The decline wireless revenue was driven by the expiration dfeg content agreement that was
renewed. These declines were partially offset lsygased revenue received from thi@kties that stream our content online. WWE.cont of
revenues decreased by 25% in the current yearodaiegallocation of marketing support.

WWEShop revenue reflects a 2% decrease in the nuafileeders processed and a 9% decrease in averageue per order in the curr
year as compared to the prior year, driven by wes&rin the economy, coupled with the transitionthiwithe talent roster. As a res
WWEShop revenues decreased by 13% in the curramtagecompared to the prior year. The decrease\WE®hop profit contribution marg
was driven by $0.6 million of increased postagesas a result of offering our customers promofi@h#pping during the holiday season
$0.1 million of increased advertising expenses.

WWE Studios

The following chart provides performance resultsdor WWE Studios segment (dollars in millions):

WWE Studios Revenues 2010 2009

Licensed films $ 10 $ 77
Self-distributed films 8.8 -
Total $ 19k $ 77
Cost of Revenues - WWE Studios 2010 2009

Licensed films $ 7.7 $ 3¢
Self-distributed films 11.5 -
Total $ 19.: $ 3.¢

Profit contribution margin 2% 49%

WWE Studios released four feature films uiili third-party distribution partners (Licensednid): See No Evil, The Marine, The
Condemned and12 Roundsand two direct-to-DVD filmsBehind Enemy Lines: Columbé&nd The Marine 2.For these licensed films,
participate in revenues and expenses generatedthemistribution of the films through all media amet basis after the print and adverti
and distribution costs incurred by our distributfmertners have been recouped and the results@oged to us, typically in periods subseq
to the initial release. We recorded $10.8 millidirevenue relating to these licensed films in therent year as compared to $7.7 million in
prior year. The increase in revenue for our licenilens is primarily driven by $3.5 million in remele from our film,12 RoundsThe license
films cost of revenues reflects the amortizatiopmfduction costs for these films.

WWE Studios changed to a self-distribution modatftstg in the third quarter of the current yeardenthis modelwe recognize revenu
and expenses for our films on a gross basis ugeage. During the current year, we released twinfedilms under this model,egendaryanc
Knuckleheac. In the current year, we recorded $8.8 milliorréwenue and $11.5 million in cost of revenue relate these selélistributec
films. We record distribution related expenses whenurred and amortize feature film production sast the same proportion that a fikn
revenue for the period relates to our ultimate nexeeprojections for such film. Included in the coktevenue is $5.3 million of amortization
production costs and $6.2 million of distributiclated expenses.

We have $56.3 million of feature film productiorsats capitalized on our balance sheet as of Deae®ihe010, of which $21.0 millic
relates to licensed films and $35.3 million relategilms either released or scheduled to be reléasder our new distribution model.
recoverability of these assets is dependant uponethenue generated by a specific film, which ipaated by general economic conditions
demand for our content by audiences and the ecaniompiact of changes in content distribution chasnel

Unamortized feature film production assets arewatald for impairment each reporting period. If dtinds indicate a potential impairme
and the estimated fair value of a film is not geedhan the unamortized asset, the asset will littewrdown to fair value. As of December
2010 and December 31, 2009, we do not believe apyatized assets included in Feature Film Prodacfissets are impaired.
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Expenses

The following chart reflects the amounts of certsignificant overhead items (dollars in millions):

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses 2010 2009
Staff related $ 52.4 $ 62.1
Legal, accounting and other professional 11.z 14.¢
Stock compensation 7.€ 7.4
Advertising and promotion 4.€ 4.1
Bad debt 0.8 8.6
All other 32.7 30.¢
Total SG&A $ 109.. $ 127.
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 23% 27%

The decrease of $9.7 million in staff related exggmnin the current year as compared to the priar igeattributable to a $4.7 milli
decrease in accrued management incentive compemsatd a $1.4 million decrease in employee bengfited costs, primarily as a resul
changes to our healthcare administrator, decreasslical claims paid and decreased negotiated ratesddition, $2.2 million in severar
related costs related to a restructuring was restbid the prior year. Legal, accounting and prafess fees in the current year benefited frc
decrease in legal case activity. Our bad debt esgoamthe prior year included a $7.4 million chargiated to a former distribution partner.

2010 2009

Depreciation and amortization $ 11 % 14.

The decrease in depreciation and amortization esgeeflects a $1.7 million benefit from the recdigm of an infrastructure tax cre
received in the current year. This credit was usededuce the carrying value of assets as of timeservice date and consequently
adjustment to depreciation expense reflects thisedvamount incurred to date. This credit was xeckin the current year but related to as
placed in service in prior years.

2010 2009

Investment income $ 2 % 3.

The decline in investment income in the current yeflects lower realized gains from investmengsah the current year, as higher inte
rates in the current year offset lower investmexiahces.

2010 2009

Interest expense $ 0L $ 0:
2010 2009

Other expense, net $ 2. $ O«

Other expense, net includes realized foreign exghaains and losses, the revaluation of warrartsiheertain licensees and certain non-
income related taxes. In the current period, wended realized foreign exchange losses of $1.3aniths compared to gains of $1.5 milliol
the prior year period. This was partially offsetthg fluctuation relating to the revaluation of veants. In the current period we recorded inc
of $0.6 million relating to the revaluation of wants as compared to a loss of $1.0 million in theryear.

Provision for Income Taxes 2010 2009
Provision $ 28! $ 29.:
Effective tax rate 35% 37%

The current year effective tax rate was positiviehpacted by a $1.3 million increase in the IRC 8ectl99 deduction on qualifi
production activity income. The increased deductiothe current year was primarily due to the highkowable deduction percentage
result of the completion of the IRS phaseperiod relating to the Section 199 deductione Tlrrent year also reflects a $1.3 million be
from recognition of previously unrecognized tax &fs, primarily as a result of the statute of lations expiring in jurisdictions in which t
Company had taken uncertain tax positions. Thegeflig to our effective tax rate were partiallysef by increased unrecognized tax ber
for uncertain tax positions.
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Year Ended December 31, 2009 compared to Year End&kcember 31, 2008 (dollars in millions)

Summary
Net Revenues 2009 2008
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 335.( $ 331.t
Consumer Products 99.7 135.7
Digital Media 32.¢ 34.¢
WWE Studios 7.7 24.F
Total $ 475.; $ 526.!
Cost of Revenues 2009 2008
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 191.¢ $ 221.2
Consumer Products 41.F 52.1
Digital Media 18.5 22.¢
WWE Studios 3.6 15.€
Total $ 255.i $ 311.
Profit contribution margin 46% 41%
Operating Income 2009 2008
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 124.7 $ 92.4
Consumer Products 52.7 76.5
Digital Media 5.8 6.2
WWE Studios 2.2 7.2
Corporate (208.) (212.0
Operating income $ 77.1 $ 70.2
Income from operations $ 50.5 $ 45.4

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment btetefrom strong performances of our live events higgther television rights fees
both domestic and international markets, which mibi@n offset declines in our pay-paew business. Our Consumer Products seg
experienced declines in both our home video areh$img businesses, primarily video games and Diggtal Media revenues declined fr
the prior year, primarily as a result of 9% feweders for our WWEShop online retail store. Revemadated to WWE Studios accounted
$7.7 million, as compared to $24.5 million recordethe prior year, reflecting timing differencesaur films release schedule.

Operating income for 2009 was also impacted by.4 $¥llion charge for bad debt expense related fiormer distribution partner and
benefit of $8.3 million of production tax incentiaseelating to our production activities. $5.0 naifli of these incentives were recorded as c¢
revenues, primarily in our Live and Televised Emigiment segment, while $3.3 million were recoréedelling, General & Administrati
expenses.

Revenues derived from international sources reptede27% and 26% of total net revenues in 20092808, respectively.
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Live and Televised Entertainment

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Live and Televised Entertafmnhsegment:

Revenues- Live and Televised Entertainment 2009 2008
Live events (dollars in millions) $ 108.6 $ 105.1
Number of North American events 26¢ 24z
Average North American attendance 6,50( 6,40(
Average North American ticket price (dolars $ 37.6¢ % 40.9¢
Number of international events 74 77
Average international attendance 8,50( 8,50(
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 66.0¢ $ 78.9¢
Venue merchandise (dollars in millions) $ 19.6 % 18.t
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 95¢ $ 10.3¢
Pay-per-view (dollars in millions) $ 80.C $ 91.¢
Number of pay-per-view events 14 14
Number of buys of pay-per-views 4,490,20 5,034,40
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 17.2¢ $ 17.7¢
Domestic retail price, excludiMyrestleManig(dollars) $ 399t § 39.9¢
Domestic retail pricé/restieMania(dollars) $ 549t $ 54.9¢
Television rights fees (dollars in millions)
Domestic $ 72.¢ % 63.5
International $ 39.1 % 37.2
Television advertising (dollars in millions) $ 77 % 7.4
WWE Classics on Demand (dollars in millions) $ 54 % 6.2
Other (dollars in millions) $ 14 % 1kt
Total (dollars in millions) $ 335.C $ 331.t
Ratings:
Average weekly household ratings for RAW 3.7 3.4
Average weekly household ratings for SmaakBo 2.C 2.4
Average weekly household ratings for ECW 1.2 1.3
Cost of Revenues-Live and Televised Entertainment 2009 2008
Live events $ 74.€ $ 74.2
Venue merchandise 11.1 11.2
Pay per view 32.5 49.¢
Television 65.7 75.¢
Television advertising 0.¢ 0.8
WWE Classics on Demand 0.8 1.8
Other 6.2 7.5
Total $ 191. $ 221..
Profit contribution margin 43% 33%
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Live events revenue reflects $67.8 million for MoAmerican events and $41.0 million for internadibevents in 2009 as compare!
$64.0 million for North American events and $41.#lion for international events in 2008. During M)Oaverage attendance at our N
American events was approximately 6,500 while ayerattendance at our international events was appately 8,500. During 2008, Nol
American average attendance was approximately 6a4@D average international attendance was appreedyn8,500. Live events pro
contribution margin was 31% in 2009 as compare®D8h in 2008. During 2008, 18 of the internationars performed were recorded as buy-
out deals. In 2009 it was determined that theseviEhts in 2008, as well as four events in 2009ulshbave been recorded on a gross |
instead of a net basis. Had these events beendszt@n a gross basis, revenues and expenses wanddelch increased by $6.3 millior
2008 and $1.3 million in 2009, with no change tofibr See Note 1 to the Consolidated FinancialeStents.

Venue merchandise revenues in 2009 were positingdacted by a 2% increase in average North Ameritgmdance, partially offset b
7% decrease in per capita spending dollars. Verarelmandise profit contribution margin was 44% i©2@s compared to 39% in 2008.

Pay-per-view revenue reflects 4.5 million buys 002 as compared to 5.0 million buys in 2008. In@08ur premier annual pay-peiew
event,WrestleMania XXV generated approximately 1.0 million buys as camgdo 1.1 million buys foWrestleMania XXIV. Several of ot
pay-per-view events were tganded in the current year to more accuratelycethe types of matches showcased during each. éYemesti
buys, which generate a higher price per buy, remptesl 63% of total buys in 2009 as compared to G6%008. The pay-peview profit
contribution margin was 59% in 2009 as comparetbts in 2008, reflecting lower production relatedtsan the current year.

Television rights fees reflect rate increases ltthomestic and international markets as well asattidition of our new domestic show
WGN, “WWE Superstars”which began airing in April 2009. Television cost @venues has declined based upon cost contai

improvements and production related tax credit$&® million in 2009. The profit contribution mangincreased from 25% to 41% in
current year.

Advertising revenues include sales of advertisingour Canadian television programs and sponsorshiggertising cost of revenu
reflects costs associated with an increased lév@ansorship related activities in the currentryea

WWE Classics On Demand, our subscription basedvitedemand service, generated lower revenues basede@cliae in the number
subscribers in the second half of the year.

Consumer Products

The following chart provides performance resultd kay drivers for our Consumer Products segmentaf@an millions) :

Revenues Consumer Products 2009 2008
Licensing $ 44.7 $ 60.5
Magazine publishing $ 13.E $ 15.4
Net units sold 4,026,30! 4,702,80!
Home video $ 39.4 $ 58.t
Gross units 3,531,46:! 4,090,53!
Other $ 2.1 $ 1.3
Total $ 99.7 $ 135.7
Cost of RevenuesConsumer Products 2009 2008
Licensing $ 11.C $ 13.€
Magazine publishing 11.1 13.z
Home video 17.7 24.2
Other 1.7 1.C
Total $ 41.F $ 52.1
Profit contribution margin 58% 62%
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Licensing revenues include $8.2 million in the tategory as compared to $12.8 million in the pyear, reflecting an overall softening
the retail market. Beginning on January 1, 2010ttéldecame our master toy licensee under a rge#i-agreement. Videogame revenue
$19.6 million as compared to $25.3 million in thiopyear. In December 2009, we entered into a mawti year contract, effective Januan
2010, with THQ granting them exclusive worldwidghis to develop and publish video games based prantent. In connection with tt
agreement, we received a payment of $13.2 millioD&cember 2009 which is included as momrent deferred income on the balance ¢
and will be recognized ratably over the term of thgreement.

Licensing revenues related to books were approein&6.8 million lower in the current year, as thér year included the recognition
an advance relating to a muwar contract with a book publisher. Licensing aafstevenue consists primarily of talent royaltesd ager
commissions paid to our licensing agents. The fizenprofit contribution margin was 75% in 2009casnpared to 78% in 2008.

Magazine publishing revenues declined in the ctiryear due to lower newsstand diilteugh rates, in addition to publishing two fe
special issues of WWE magazine in 2009 as comptaréle prior year. Magazine publishing profit cdmiition margin was 18% in 2009
compared to 14% in 2008 as the profit margin waerably impacted by a decline in publication costs.

Home video revenue reflects the sale of approxilmae million gross units in 2009 as compared tb #illion gross units in 200
Included in the successful titles released in 20@8 WrestleMania XXV, which shipped approximately 234,000 gross ufitee home vide
profit contribution margin was 55% in 2009 as conegao 59% in 2008, reflecting increased distribuittosts.

Digital Media

The following chart provides performance resultsl &ey drivers for our Digital Media segment (dadlan millions, except avera
revenues per order):

Revenues Digital Media 2009 2008
WWE.com $ 16.€ $ 16.:
WWEShop 16.C 18.t
Total $ 32¢ $ 34¢
Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars) $ 51.8¢ $ 54.7i
Cost of RevenuedDigital Media 2009 2008
WWE.com $ 6.9 $ 8.8
WWEShop 11.€ 14.1
Total $ 18:E $ 22¢
Profit contribution margin 44% 34%

WWE.com revenue in 2009 reflects additionghdicated content sales to outside websites. W&ded advertising accounted
approximately $10.8 million in revenues as compacefi10.6 million in 2008. The WWE.com profit cabirtion margin was 59% in 2009
compared to 46% in 2008, reflecting lower costeiséed with the production of web content and hlemefit of $1.1 million of certa
production incentives.

WWEShop revenue in 2009 reflects approximately @00,customer orders, a decrease of 9% from the peiar. The average custor
spend, $51.83 per order, decreased 5% from the year. The WWEShop profit contribution margin v&896 in 2009 as compared to 249
2008, partially reflecting a decrease in matenml &ulfillment costs.
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WWE Studios

The following chart provides performance itsfor our WWE Studios segment (dollars in mill&n

Revenues WWE Studios 2009 2008
WWE Studios $ 7.7 $ 24°F
Total $ 7.7 $ 24t
Cost of RevenuesVWE Studios 2009 2008
WWE Studios $ 3¢ $ 15.€
Total $ 3¢ $ 15
Profit contribution margin 49% 36%

WWE patrticipates in revenues associated with dor firojects when the distribution and advertisinogts incurred by our distributors hi
been recouped and the results have been reportesl ouring 2009, revenues from our WWE Studiosreag were $7.7 million, primari
relating to our three previously released featilnesfThe Marine, See No EviandThe Condemned.he revenues recorded for our films va
based upon the release schedule of the films. BDRO09 we released our fourth feature filt@d, Roundsas well as two Direct-t®VD films,
Behind Enemy Line: ColombiaandThe Marine 2 12 Roundgjenerated approximately $12.2 million in gross dstieebox office receipts al
comprised $19.7 million of our “In release” featuilen assets at December 31, 20@ehind Enemy Lines: Colombe&nd The Marine
comprised $2.1 million and $2.3 million, respeclyveof “In release”feature film assets. Our feature film assets acerded net of certa
production incentives. During 2009 we received $4ilion in production incentives related to ounfiproduction.

Expenses

The following chart reflects the amounts of certsigmificant overhead items (dollars in millions):

Selling, General & Administrative Expenses 2009 2008
Staff related $ 621 $ 552
Legal, accounting and other professional 14.¢ 16.€
Stock compensation 7.4 8.C
Advertising and promotion 4.1 11.€
Bad debt 8.6 2.5
All other 30.€ 37.4
Total SG&A $ 127.¢ $ 131:
SG&A as a percentage of net revenues 27% 25%

Staff related expenses in 2009 included higher antsowf accrued incentive compensation based onCiapanys performanc
Advertising and promotion costs in 2008 included5$fillion associated with our McMahan'Million Dollar Mania™ brand awarene
campaign. WWE was reimbursed $2.0 million, neteof, for the prize money associated with this evsnthe Chairman and Chief Execut
Officer of WWE, Vincent K. McMahon. Bad debt experia 2009 reflected an approximately $7.4 millitvage to bad debt expense relate
a former distribution partner. Additionally, 20Q®cluded a benefit of $3.3 million relating to pratian incentives.

2009 2008
Depreciation and amortization $ 144 $ 13.1

The increase in depreciation and amortization expepflects a full year of depreciation charge2009 associated with the equipn
purchased for our move to high definition broadcasin 2008.
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2009 2008
Investment income $ 31 $ 5¢
The decline in investment income reflectsdowmterest rates on investment balances.
2009 2008
Interest expense $ 03 $ 04
2009 2008
Other expense, net $ 04 $ 64

Other expense, net includes the revaluation of amsr held in certain licensees of $1.1 million &&I0 million for 2009 and 20C
respectively, and realized foreign exchange gaiaisl@sses.

Provision for Income Taxes 2009 2008
Provision $ 29.1 $ 23¢
Effective tax rate 37% 35%

Contributing to the higher effective rate in 200 ahanges in provisions for unrecognized tax bhenedlating to uncertain tax positio
2008 reflects a $2.1 million benefit from the recitign of tax benefits that were previously unremiagd, primarily as a result of the statut
limitations expiring in jurisdictions in which theompany had taken uncertain tax positions. Thigfiewas partially offset by $1.8 million
additional provisions for unrecognized tax beneffidsorded during the year. During 2009, the Compatprded $0.3 million in additior
provisions relating to uncertainty in its existitax positions and also recorded an additional giowi of $3.0 million relating to a tax posit
taken during the year.

Also contributing to the increase in the effectie rate in the 2009 rate is a $0.9 million deceemmstaxexempt interest income
compared to the prior year.

Partially offsetting the increase in the effectraée is a $1.6 million benefit due to the reverfad previously recorded valuation allowa
relating to certain deferred tax assets. The Compaalized capital gains during the current yeaicWloffset previously recorded capital los
for which realization was not expected, resultinghie reversal of the previously recorded valuatibowance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We maintain a strong balance sheet with $182.0anill$230.6 million and $199.6 million in cash aindestments as of December
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Our debt bakatehe corresponding yeand dates were $2.8 million, $3.9 million and $hBlion,
respectively.

Over the past three years, our cash flows fromatjyey activities were $192.5 million, our net capigxpenditures were $40n3illion anc
our aggregate dividends paid were $247.3 milliore Bélieve that cash provided from operations aondhfexisting cash and investm
balances will be sufficient to meet our currentragiag requirements, including feature film prodaotrequirements and projected cay
expenditures over the next 12 months.

Cash flows from operating activities were $39ndlion, $116.4 million and $36.2 million for theegrs ended December 31, 2(
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, resplct®éthe $76.6million decrease from the prior year, approximat&8s.5 million wa
attributable to an increase in film related spegdin the current year we spent approximately $4dilbon on film production related activiti
compared to $11.6 million in the prior year. In therent year we received $3.0 million in incensivelated to film production, as compare
$6.5 million in the prior year. Related to curremiar productions, we anticipate receiving approxélya$7.7 million in incentives in futu
periods. By producing multiple pictures within aoghtime period we are able to leverage producgfficiencies. We anticipate spend
between $12.0 million and $18.0 million on feat il production activities in 2011.

Also driving a significant change in cash flow fraperating activities was a $20.2 million increaseash paid for taxes. In the prior y
we received a refund of $11.0 million related toocaerpayment of prior year taxes. In the curremigak our estimated payments were hig
than the prior year due to an increase in our edéthtaxable income. In December, changes in thiavaresulted in our estimated paym«
being too high. We anticipate receiving a refund$8f0 million in 2011 due to overpayment of 201@imeated taxes. Additionally, bon
payouts in 2010 relating to 2009 performance wppmaimately $4.7 million higher than the compaeapéyouts in the prior year.
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The above explanations also account for the sicanifi fluctuations in Prepaid expense and othereatirassets, Feature film produc
assets, Accrued expenses and other liabilitieadtfition to the above significant changes in céshd from operating activities, the Compasy’
Accounts Receivable balance decreased $10.7 millibis decrease was driven by several factorsudiey decreased revenues in our H
video business and the receipt of a contractuaingay due from a customer that was slightly delagtedur prior yeaend. Also, the prior ye
had a large non-cash charge relating to an alloevémcbad debt from a previous distribution partredditionally, the Compang’ deferre
income increased by $13.7 million primarily duethe receipt of two $7.5 million advances receivemhf a licensee. The second advanc
$7.5 million relates to 2011 royalty obligations.

We receive production tax credits or refunds thtougrious governmental programs designed to proriloteand television productic
within the United States and international jurisidias. In 2010, we received incentives of $6.1 i) $4.2 million and $3.0 million, relating
TV production, infrastructure improvements relatied the transition to HD and film production, resipeely. We anticipate receivir
approximately $12.0 to $15.0 million in productieredits within the next twelve months. The timingdarealizable amount of credits
impacted by our production schedule and limitatiassociated with monetization of the credits.

Our accounts receivable represents a significartigmoof our current assets and relate princip&dhya limited number of customers
distributors. Changes in the financial conditionoperations of our distributors or customers mayltein increased delayed payments or non-
payments which would adversely impact our cashdlinem operating activities and/or our results péations.

Cash flows used in investing activities were $4@illion and $6.4 million for the years ended DecemB1, 2010 and December 31, 2
as compared to cash flows provided by investinivities of $21.7 million for the year ended Decemi3&, 2008. In the current year
purchased $97.1 million of shadfm investment securities, including $40.0 milliohgovernment agency bonds, which were subsex
sold. Capital expenditures were approximately $h2ilBon, $5.5 million and $26.6 million in 2010, @0 and 2008, respectively. The incre
in capital expenditures in the current year isiplytdue to approximately $5.0 million in techngloal advancements relating to our televi
content.Included in 2008 capital expenditures is the adtjors of a parcel of land for $3.0 million and $3W8illion in costs related to tl
planning of a significant expansion and update wf media center. In 2008 the Company delayed tiwe of this project due to econor
uncertainty. Management still feels this projecaipriority, however, has not determined a stai dor the construction. Capital expendit
for 2011, excluding potential costs associated h#h media center project, are estimated to rargeden $8.0 million and $12.0 millic
primarily reflecting additional purchases of broasting equipment and building related improvements.

Our investment policy is designed to preserve ahpihd minimize interest rate, credit and marksk.rin February 2008, we startec
experience difficulty in selling our auction ratecsrities (ARS) due to multiple failures of the e mechanism that provides liquidity to th
investments. All of our ARS are collateralized kydent loan portfolios, substantially all of whielte guaranteed by the United St
Government. We anticipate that the securities fhictvthe auctions have failed will continue to aecinterest and pay interest when due; to-
date, none of the ARS in which we are invested liaved to make an interest payment when due. QR Avill continue to be auctioned ev
35 days until the auctions succeed, the issuereraddhe securities or they mature (the stated itiatuof the securities are greater thai
years). As of December 31, 2010, we held $16.0ionilbf ARS. During 2010 and 2009, $8.4 million a@5 million, respectively, of AR
were redeemed at par value. As we maintain a stiiqniglity position, our intent is not to sell tlsecurities and we believe that it is not n
likely than not that we will be required to selltilione of the aforementioned remedies occurs. Wecantinue to assess the carrying valu
our ARS on each reporting date, based on the éxtircumstances surrounding our liquidity needsdevelopments in the ARS markets.

Cash flows used in financing activities were $78dlion $79.8 million and $74.1 million for the yeaended December 31, 2C
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, resplyctime2010, 2009 and 2008, we paid four quartedgh dividends of $0.36 on all Clas
common shares, and $0.24 on all Class B commoresh&or an aggregate amount of $83.6 million, $82i8ion and $81.4 millior
respectively. In February 2008, the Company in@dats quarterly dividend from $0.24 to $0.36 peare. At that time, the McMahon farr
and their trusts entered into an agreement witlfCityv@pany to waive the increased portion of theddiud for all shares of Class A and Cla:
common stock beneficially held by the family foperiod of three years. Instead, they continueceteive a quarterly cash dividend of $(
per share. This waiver has now expired. Any nevidéivd waiver is subject to two things. The fissthe receipt of the approval of the Inter
Revenue Service, which has been obtained. The désadhe agreement of members of the McMahon family ddtermination has been mi
by the McMahon family to enter into a new waiveresment. Our Board of Directors regularly evaludates Company ' ££ommon Stoc
dividend policy and determines the dividend rateheguarter. The level of dividends will continueb® influenced by many factors, includi
among other things, our liquidity and historicallgerojected cash flow, our strategic plan (inclgdaiternative uses of capital), our finan
results and condition, contractual and legal retstris on the payment of dividends, general econaanid competitive conditions and s
other factors as our Board of Directors may cormsigevant from time to time including the waiver, if any, by the McMahon fdynof a
portion of the dividendsWe cannot assure our stockholders that dividerildw paid in the future, or that, if paid, dividgs will be at th
same amount or with the same frequency as in tsie pa

Contractual Obligations

In addition to longierm debt, we have entered into various other ectgrunder which we are required to make guararpegchent:
including:

e Various operating leases for office space and enei.



e Employment contract with Vincent K. McMahon, effiget January 1, 2011, through December 2013, witluahrenewals thereafte|
not terminated by us or Mr. McMahon. Mr. McMahsi@ompensation under this contract is a salaryidf #illion per year, in additic
to any applicable bonus.
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e Other employment contracts, which are generallyfar to three year terms.

e Service contracts with certain of our independemti@ctors, including our talent, which are gergrar one to four year terms.

Our aggregate minimum payment obligationsaurdese contracts as of December 31, 2010 wdrdlaws:

Payments due by period

($ in millions)

After

2011 2012 to 201: 2014 to 201! 2015 Other Total
Long-term debt (including interest thereon) $ 13 $ 1.7 $ - $ - 3 - $ 3¢
Operating leases 2.C 3.C 2.€ 1.9 - 9.t
Talent, employment agreements and other commitments 15.F 9.8 5.4 8.3 - 39.C
Uncertain tax positiong) - - - - 10.1 10.1
Total commitments $ 18¢& $ 14t $ 8C $ 10z $ 101 $ 61

(1) We have $10.Imillion in liabilities associated with uncertainxtpositions. Weare unable to reasonably estimthe expecteccast
settlementdates of these uncertain tax positit with the respective taxing authori

Seasonality

Our operating results are not materially affectgdsbasonal factors; however, our premier eVéfrestleMania, occurs late in our fir
quarter or early in our second quarter. In addjtimvenues from our licensing and direct sale afsooer products, including our catalc
magazines and internet sites, varies from periogetdod depending on the volume and extent of Boen agreements and marketing
promotion programs entered into during any paréicpkriod of time, as well as the commercial susodshe media exposure of our charac
and brand. The timing of revenues related to our BVSt%udios segment fluctuates based upon the tiofiogr feature film releases. The tim
of these events as well as the continued introdnaif new product offerings and revenue generatimdets can and will cause fluctuatior
quarterly revenues and earnings.

Inflation
During 2010, 2009 and 2008, inflation has not hadberial effect on our business.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2010, we did not have any nelteff-balance sheet arrangements, as defineetim 803(a)(4) of SEC Regulation S-
K.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We believe the following are the critical accougtipolicies used in the preparation of our finanstatements, as well as the signific
judgments and estimates affecting the applicatichese policies
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e Revenue Recognition
Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-pgrew programming are recorded when the event edaand are based upon our initial estimate of thelber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atlipinary buy information received from our pay—wew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-periew buys occurs within one year and any subseqadjstments to the buys are recognized in theogarew information
received. Our pay-pariew accounts receivable was $10.4 million and %1@iillion at December 31, 2010 and December 31,9;
respectively. If our initial estimate is incorreittcan result in significant adjustments to revesiin subsequent periods.

Sponsorships:

Through our sponsorship packages, we offer adeestia full range of our promotional vehicles, imihg internet and print advertisit
on-air announcements and special appearances by parsdars. We assign the total sponsorship revetouttee various elements contail
within a sponsorship package based on objectivergliable evidence of fair value and their relatige values. Our relative fair values for
sponsorship elements are based upon a combindtiastorical prices and current advertising marnetditions.

Licensing:

Licensing revenues are recognized upon receipgmdrts from the individual licensees that detadl tbyalties generated by product s:
If we receive licensing advances or fupnat fees, such payments are deferred and recedrsg income is earned over the term of the car
In connection with our agreement with THQ we reedia payment of $13.2 million in December 2009;.$Irillion of this amount we
recorded as non-current deferred income and wer@dbgnize this amount ratably over the term of Hyreement.

Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles averded at the later of the date of delivery by distributor to wholesalers, or the d
that these products are made widely availabledt By retailers, net of an allowance for estimatgdrns. The allowance for estimated ret
is based on historical information, current indystends and demand for our titles. As of Decen®ier2010, our home video returns allowe
was $5.6 million. If we do not accurately predieturns, we may have to adjust revenues in futuriege

Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whepeshiby our distributor to wholesalers/retailerst af an allowance for estima
returns. We estimate the allowance for newsstatame based upon our review of historical retutesand the expected performance o
current issues in relation to prior issue retutesaAs of December 31, 2010, our newsstand retlfawance was $4.3 million. If we do |
accurately predict returns, we may have to adgstmues in future periods.

Television Rights:

Rights fees received from distributors of our t&@n programming, both domestically and internadilty, are recorded when the progi
has been delivered to the distributor and is akkeldor exhibition. Our typical distribution agreent is between one and five years in le
and frequently provides for contractual increasesr dts term. Expenses incurred in the productibow weekly television programming i
expensed when the programming is first availabtefibition.

Feature films:

Revenue recognition for our feature films variepataling on the method of distribution and the extdrcontrol the Company exercit
over the distribution and related expenses. Wecisersignificant control over setfistributed films and as a result, we record reeeant
related expenses on a gross basis. Fordéstifibuted films we record revenue from the thieatrrelease of the feature film at the time
exhibition based on our participation in box offiezeipts. Home video revenues, pay-per-view, amdvimeo-ondemand sales are recogni
for films consistent with our existing policies.
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In instances where third party distributicartpers control the distribution and marketing ibh$ (“Licensed films”)we recognize reven
on a net basis after third party distributors rgrdistribution fees and expenses and the reswis been reported to us. This typically occul
periods subsequent to the initial release of the fi

Management regularly reviews and revises, whenssacg, its ultimate revenue and cost estimates;hwiniay result in a change in the
of amortization of film costs and/or wrigBwn of all or a portion of the unamortized codtshe film to its estimated fair value. No assur
can be given that unfavorable changes to revendecast estimates will not occur, which may resalsignificant writedowns affecting ot
results of operations and financial condition. 602 and 2007 we recorded an impairment charge & ®lllion and $15.7 million related
See No Evil and The Condemnedspectively. As of December 31, 2010, we have3Hillion (net of amortization and impairment ofyes
in capitalized film production costs.

We have performed estimates of our ultimate revdoueach of our released film projects, as weltasewed the capitalized costs
various film projects in development, and belieeeadditional write-down is required at this time.

e Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our receivables represent a significant portiorowf current assets. We are required to estimatedhectability of our receivables a
establish allowances for the amount of receivatilas we estimate to be uncollectible. We base tldlsevances on our historical collect
experience, the length of time our receivablesarstanding and the financial condition of indivadliicustomers. Changes in the finar
condition of significant customers, either advessepositive, could impact the amount and timingaafy additional allowances that may
required. During 2010 and 2009, we recorded anvalfwe for doubtful accounts of $0.5 and $7.4 millicespectively, related to a forr
distribution partner. As of December 31, 2010, allswance for doubtful accounts was $12.3 million.

e [ncome Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognifcedthe expected future tax consequences of evdwaits have been reflected in
Consolidated Financial Statements. Deferred tailiiies and assets are determined based on tferetites between the book and tax bas
particular assets and liabilities and operating loarryforwards, using tax rates in effect for ylears in which the differences are expecte
reverse. A valuation allowance is provided to dffdeferred tax assets if, based upon the availewigence, including consideration of
planning strategies, it is more-likely-thawt that some or all of the deferred tax assets ot be realized. As of December 31, 2010,
deferred tax assets were $31.6 million, less aat@no allowance of $1.4 million. As of December 2010, our deferred tax liabilities wi
$22.3 million and our unrecognized tax benefitaled $10.1 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Statsl&oard (FASB) issued an accounting standard epegiarding revenue recognit
for multiple deliverable arrangements. This updatgiires the use of the relative selling price métivhen allocating revenue in these type
arrangements. This method allows a vendor to sskeist estimate of selling price if neither vensipecific objective evidence nor third pz
evidence of selling price exists when evaluatindtiple deliverable arrangements. This standard tgpdaeffective January 1, 2011 and ma
adopted prospectively for revenue arrangementgeghiato or materially modified after the date dbation or retrospectively for all rever
arrangements for all periods presented. The adopifothis pronouncement will not have a materideef on our consolidated financ
statements.
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Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Harb) Provisions of the Private Securities LitigatioReform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9frovides a “safe harbor” for certain statemehtd tire forwardeoking and are n
based on historical facts. When used in this Repbet words “may,” “will,” “could,” “anticipate,” plan,” “continue,” “project,” “intend;
“estimate”, “believe”, “expect” and similar exprésss are intended to identify forward-looking sta@ts, although not all forwaldeking
statements contain such words. These statemeats telour future plans, objectives, expectationsiatentions and are not historical facts
accordingly involve known and unknown risks andenteinties and other factors that may cause theabosults or the performance by u
be materially different from future results or perhance expressed or implied by such forwaaking statements. The following factc
among others, could cause actual results to diffaterially from those contained in forwal@bking statements made in this Report, in |
releases and in oral statements made by our amélubdfficers: (i) our failure to maintain or renéey agreements could adversely affect
ability to distribute our television and pay-pgew programming; (ii) our failure to continue tewklop creative and entertaining programs
events would likely lead to a decline in the popityaof our brand of entertainment; (iii) our faiki to retain or continue to recruit |
performers could lead to a decline in the appealunfstorylines and the popularity of our branaofertainment; (iv) the unexpected loss o
services of Vincent K. McMahon could adversely efffeur ability to create popular characters anditire storylines or otherwise advers
affect ouroperations; (v) decline in general economic condiiand disruption in financial markets could adebr affect our business; (vi) ¢
accounts receivable represent a significant porioour current assets and relate principally tonéted number of distributors, increasing
exposure to bad debts and potentially impactingresults of operations; (vii) a decline in the plapitly of our brand of sports entertainm
including as a result of changes in the social paotitical climate, could adversely affect our biesin; (viii) changes in the regulat
atmosphere and related private sector initiativeddcadversely affect our business; (ix) the marketwhich we operate are highly competit
rapidly changing and increasingly fragmented, arelmay not be able to compete effectively, espgciafjainst competitors with gree
financial resources or marketplace presence; (xfage uncertainties associated with internationatkats; (xi) we may be prohibited frt
promoting and conducting our live events if we dii nomply with applicable regulations; (xii) because depend upon our intellect
property rights, our inability to protect those hig, or our infringement of other@tellectual property rights, could adversely affeti
business; (xiii) we could incur substantial liatdéé if pending litigation is resolved unfavorab{yjv) we could incur substantial liability in t
event of accidents or injuries occurring during physically demanding events; (xv) our live eveexpose us to risks relating to large pu
events as well as travel to and from such everts) e continue to face risks inherent in our teatfilm business; (xvii) through his benefit
ownership of a substantial majority of our ClassdBnmon stock, our controlling stockholder, Vinc&ntMcMahon, can exercise control o
our affairs, and his interests may conflict witte tholders of our Class A common stock; (xviii) wauld face a variety of risks if we expe
into new or complementary businesses; (xix) a suttstt number of shares are eligible for sale by McMahon and members of his family
trusts established for their benefit, and the salehe perception of possible sales, of thoseesheould lower our stock price; and (xx)
Class A common stock has a relatively small putflmat”. In addition, our dividend is significant and is éegent on a number of factc
including, among other things, our liquidity andtorical and projected cash flow, strategic plarci(iding alternative uses of capital),
financial results and condition, contractual arghleestrictions on the payment of dividends, geheconomic and competitive conditions
such other factors as our Board of Directors maysiter relevant including a waiver by the McMahamily of a portion of the dividen
which has now expired. Any new dividend waiver ibject to two things. The first ithe receipt of the approval of the Internal Rew
Service, which has been obtained. The secotidei:greement of members of the McMahon family.ddtermination has been made by
McMahon family to enter into a new waiver agreemdifte forwardlooking statements speak only as of the date of Réport and und
reliance should not be placed on these statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure®aut Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposéateégn currency exchange rate, interest rateeaquity price risks that could impact «
results of operations. Our foreign currency exdearate risk is minimized by maintaining minimat mssets and liabilities in currencies o
than our functional currency.

Investment:

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of maipial bonds, including preefunded municipal bonds, corporate bonds and Guctit:
securities. We are exposed to market risk relédedur investment portfolio primarily as a resultapedit quality risk and interest rate ri
Credit quality risk is defined as the risk of aditalowngrade to an individual fixed maturity sdtuand the potential loss attributable to
downgrade. Credit quality risk is managed throughiovestment policy, which establishes credit gudimitations on the overall portfolio
well as diversification and percentage limits oruwsiies of individual issuers. The result is a hdiVersified portfolio of fixed maturit
securities, with a weighted average credit ratihgpproximately “ AA " .

Interest rate risk is defined as the potentialdoonomic losses on fixed maturity securities dua thange in market interest rates.
investments in municipal bonds and corporate btwad® exposure to changes in the level of marketést rates. Interest rate risk is mitig;
by managing our investment portfolios’dollar weighted duration. Additionally, we havee tcapability of holding any security to matui
which would allow us to realize full par value. \Wave evaluated the impact of an immediate 100skia@int change in interest rates on
investment portfolio. A 100 basis point increaseénterest rates would result in an approximate! $dillion decrease in fair value, where:
100 basis point decrease in interest rates wosldtran an approximate $1.4 million increase i falue.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Di

The information required by this item is set farilthe Consolidated Financial Statements filed whik report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourtiaon Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

We have performed an evaluation under the superviahd with the participation of our managemertluding our Chairman and Ch
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officef,the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures, as defined under the Secu
Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluation,Ghairman and Chief Executive Officer, and our €Rimancial Officer concluded that
of the end of the period covered by this FormKlur disclosure controls and procedures werectffe and designed to ensure tha
material information required to be disclosed by @ompany in reports that it files or submits untther Exchange Act is recorded, proces
summarized and reported within the time periodscifipd by the SEC anthat such information is accumulated and commuediab ou
management, as appropriate to allow timely decssiegarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in the Company’s internarabaver financial reporting identified in conngst with managemenrg’ evaluatio
that occurred during the fourth quarter of our disgear ended December 31, 2010 that has matea#fibeted, or is reasonably likely
materially affect, our internal control over fingalcreporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finarad Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting, as such term is definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 156(f). Under the supervision and with the partitipa of our management, including our Chairman
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial iO#fr, we conducted an evaluation of the effectigsnaf our internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2010 based on theelinés established imternal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis€@DSO). Our internal control over financial refagtincludes policies and procedt
that provide reasonable assurance regarding tiabiteey of financial reporting and the preparatiohfinancial statements for external repor
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accegatedunting principles.

Based on the results of our evaluation, our managémoncluded that our internal control over finahceporting was effective as
December 31, 2010. We review the results of managémassessment with our Audit Committee.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of December 31, 2010 has beditealiby Deloitte & Touche LLP, i
independent registered public accounting firm, tated in their report which is included in this Amh Report on Form 18. Such repo
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiserd the Company'’s internal control over financggorting as of December 31, 2010.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the internal control over financggdorting of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inadasubsidiaries (the “Company8ds o
December 31, 2010, based on criteria establishebhtarnal Control — Integrated Frameworikssued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Campgananagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigerd internal control over financial reportingclmded in the accompanyirganagement &
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportil. Our responsibility is to express an opinion oa tBompany's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversightf8g&nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtabsonable assurance about whether effectiven@iteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corar@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etimaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofiratiecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed by, or under the supenvis, the company's principal execu
and principal financial officers, or persons pemfiorg similar functions, and effected by the comparpard of directors, management,
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneedieg the reliability of financial reporting anlet preparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generally @edeaccounting principles. A company's internaitod over financial reporting includ
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheariaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactiomreeoeded as necessary to permit prepar
of financial statements in accordance with gengi@dlcepted accounting principles, and that recaiptsexpenditures of the company are t
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and directors of the company; and (3) pev&hsonable assurance regar
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized astjjon, use, or disposition of the company's as#leat could have a material effect on
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tconover financial reporting, including the pogstlp of collusion or improper managemu
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected ¢timely basis. Also, projections of ¢
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltominover financial reporting to future periods asebject to the risk that the controls r
become inadequate because of changes in conditivttgt the degree of compliance with the policdeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on the criteria establishedlimernal Control—Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohghe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), the consolida
financial statements and financial statement sdeeds of and for the year ended December 31, 2018eoCompany and our report de
March 3, 2011 expressed an unqualified opiniothose financial statements and financial staterseimédule.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
March 3, 2011
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART IlI

The information required by Part Il (Items 1@) is incorporated herein by reference to ourntéfie proxy statement for our 2011 Ann
Meeting of Stockholders, except for the equity cemgation plan information required by Item 12, vbhig set forth above in Item 5.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(a) The following documents are filed as a pathds report:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements and ScheduleinBeg to Consolidated Financial Statements on f5-1 of this Report

2. Exhibits:
Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiooofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Regtion Statement on Fo

S-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

3.1A Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate afriporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit(d) to our Registratic
Statement on Form-8, filed July 15, 2002

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by eefsr to Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration StatementForm S-1 (No. 333-
84327)).

3.2A Amendment to Amended and Restatec-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2¢aptir Registration Statement on F
S-8, filed July 15, 2002,

10.1 World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 2007 Omnibusédntive Plan, effective July 20, 2007 (incorporabgdreference to Exhit
10.2 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed July 26, 2007).’

10.2 Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Units te @ompany’s employees and officers under the Cogipa2007 Omnibt
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed July 26, 2007).!

10.3 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units to ®empan’s employees and officers under the Comj's 2007 Omnibt
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi4 to the Current Report on Fori-K filed July 26, 2007).’

10.4 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with &fihd<. McMahon, effective as of January 1, 201Xkdhporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Reportonm ¢-K filed November 15, 2010).
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10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

211

23.1

311

31.2

32.1

World Wrestling Entertainment Employee Stock PusehBlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 26.6ur Annual Report ¢
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002

Revised offer letter between the Company and Ddpolasmith (incorporated by reference to Exhibit198 our Current Repa
on Form &K, dated December 1, 2008

Offer letter between the Company and George A.iBsufincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21oto Current Report ¢
Form ¢-K, dated March 14, 2008)

Offer letter, dated March 4, 2004, between the Camgpand John Laurinaitis (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.17 to ot
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2005

Employment Agreement, dated June 15, 2009, betwseiCompany and Michael Pavone (incorporateddgrence to Exhik
10.19 to the Quarterly Report on Formr-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20

Open End Mortgage Deed, Assignment of Rents andriBe@greement between TSI Realty Company and GM&&@nmercie
Mortgage Corp. (assigned to Citicorp Real Estate.)] dated as of December 12, 1997 (incorporayeckterence to Exhibit 10..
to our Registration Statement on For-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Promissory Note issued by TSI Realty Company to GMBommercial Mortgage Corp. (assigned to CiticogalREstate, Inc.
dated as of December 12, 1997 (incorporated byerée to Exhibit 10.12 to our Registration StatenwmnForm S-1 (No. 333-
84327)).

Environmental Indemnity Agreement among TSI Re&@tympany, Titan Sports Inc. and GMAC Commercial idage Cory
(assigned to Citicorp Real Estate, Inc.), datedofa®ecember 12, 1997 (incorporated by referencéxbibit 10.13 to ot
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (No. 33:-84327)).

Assignment of Leases and Rents between TSI Realtyp@ny and GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corp. (assigngditicorp Rez
Estate, Inc.), dated as of December 12, 1997 (purated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to our Reagiigin Statement on Form 55-
(No. 33%-84327)).

Agreement between WWW/orld Wide Fund for Nature and Titan Sports, Inatedl January 20, 1994 (incorporated by referer
Exhibit 10.16 to our Registration Statement on F&-1 (No. 33-84327)).

List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filed herewith).

Certification by Vincent K. McMahon pursuant to 8en 302 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith
Certification by George A. Barrios pursuant to 8#t802 of Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

Certification by Vincent K. McMahon and George AarBos pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbadeey Act of 2002 (filer
herewith).

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @iarrangement.

39




Table of Contents
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therelp authorized.

W ORLD W RESTLING E NTERTAINMENT, | NC .
(Registrant)
Dated: March 3, 2011 By: /S/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon

Chairman of the Board of Directors and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behall
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title or Capacity Date
Chairman of the Board of Directors and

/s/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON Chief Executive Officer

Vincent K. McMahon (principal executive officer) March 3, 201!

/s/ LOWELL P. WEICKER Jr. Director March 3, 2011

Lowell P. Weicker Jr.

/s/ DAVID KENIN Director March 3, 2011
David Kenin
/s/ JOSEPH H. PERKINS Director March 3, 2011

Joseph H. Perkins

/sl FRANK A. RIDDICK Il Director March 3, 2011
Frank A. Riddick 11l

/s/ JEFFREY R. SPEED Director March 3, 2011
Jeffrey R. Speed

/s/ KEVIN DUNN Director March 3, 2011
Kevin Dunn
/s/ BASIL V. DEVITO Jr. Director March 3, 2011

Basil V. DeVito Jr

/sl GEORGE A. BARRIOS Chief Financial Officer March 3, 2011
George A. Barrios (principal financial and accounting officer)

40




Table of Contents

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgheets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Ina anbsidiaries (the “Company&s o
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related cdasetl income statements, stockholdezgquity and comprehensive income, and cash -
for each of the three years in the period endeceBer 31, 2010. Our audits also included the firzdistatement schedule listed in the Inde
Item 15. These financial statements and finant&ement schedule are the responsibility of the @amg 's management. Our responsibilit
to express an opinion on the financial statememdsfimancial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaflo(United States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenmemtekhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetaepresent fairly, in all material respects, tiwarcial position of World Wrestlir
Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecerBlef010 and 2009, and the results of their omeratand their cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended December 31, 20 @nformity with accounting principles generadigcepted in the United States of Amel
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement sitie, when considered in relation to the basic olthasted financial statements taken
whole, present fairly, in all material respectg thformation set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), the Company ’
internal control over financial reporting as of [eetber 31, 2010, based on the criteria establighédernal Control —ntegrated Framewol
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadway Commission and our report datedcMa& , 2011 expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company ’ s internal wohover financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
March 3, 2011
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008

Cost of revenues 274,29¢ 255,84" 311,78

Depreciation and amortization 11,70° 14,42¢ 13,08:

Investment income, net 2,047 3,051 5,872

Other expense, net (2,105 (41%) (6,38))

Provision for income taxes 28,48¢ 29,127 23,94(

Earnings per share:

0.71 0.6z

©»
@
o
o))
m
7

Diluted

Basic 74,57( 73,76¢ 72,88¢

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share data)

As of December 31,

2010 2009
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 69,82: $ 149,78
Short-term investments 97,12« 58,44(
Accounts receivable, net 52,05 62,73:
Inventory 2,087 2,18:
Deferred income tax assets 17,12¢ 11,65¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 20,85¢ 10,06¢
Total current assets 259,06 294,85¢
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 80,99t 84,37¢
FEATURE FILM PRODUCTION ASSETS, NET 56,25! 37,05
INVESTMENT SECURITIES, NET 15,031 22,37(
OTHER ASSETS 4,37¢ 1,96:
TOTAL ASSETS $ 415,72¢ $ 440,62
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 1,16¢ % 1,08:
Accounts payable 18,44 21,28:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 24,47¢ 35,16¢
Deferred income 28,32¢ 14,60:
Total current liabilities 72,411 72,13(
LONG-TERM DEBT 1,621 2,79(
NON-CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 15,06¢ 17,15:
NON-CURRENT DEFERRED INCOME 9,881 11,52¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Class A common stock: ($.01 par value; 180,000 shares authorized;

27,515,984 and 25,680,517 sharegisand outstanding as of December 31,

2010 and 2009, respectively) 27E 257
Class B common stock: ($.01 par value; 60,000 shares authorized;

46,482,591 and 47,713,563 sharegikas of December 31, 2010 and 2009) 46E 477
Additional paid-in capital 336,59: 326,00¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,14¢ 2,37
Retained (deficit) earnings (23,729 7,90z

Total stockholders’ equity 316,74t 337,02:
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 415,72 $ 440,62

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financitegtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Balance, December 31, 2007

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Translation adjustment
Unrealized holding loss, net of tax of
$404
Reclassification adjustment for losses
realized in net income, net of tax of
$89

Total comprehensive income

Stock issuances (repurchases), net

Exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from stock-based
payment arrangements

Dividends paid

Stock compensation costs

Capital contribution by principal
stockholder

Balance, December 31, 2008

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Translation adjustment
Unrealized holding gain, net of tax of
$541
Reclassification adjustment for gains
realized in net income, net of tax of
$407

Total comprehensive income

Stock issuances (repurchases), net
Exercise of stock options

Tax shortfall from stock-based payment
arrangements

Dividends paid

Stock compensation costs

Balance, December 31, 2009

(in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid —in Comprehensive  Retained
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income  Earnings Total

71,78¢ 71€ 301,32¢ 2,89¢ 78,43¢ 383,38(
— — — — 45,41¢ 45,41¢
— — — (1,209 — (1,207%)
— — — (660) — (66C)
— — — 144 — 144
43,69:
551 6 (2,969 — — (2,959
514 5 6,26 — = 6,26¢
— — 1,081 — — 1,081
— — 1,48¢ — (82,88¢) (81,39
— — 7,95¢ — — 7,95¢
— — 1,95( — — 1,95(
72,85 $ 72¢ $ 317,100 $ 1,171 $ 40,96¢ $ 359,97:
— — — — 50,30 50,30:
— — — 987 — 987
— — — 882 — 882
— — — (664) — (664)
51,50¢
361 3 (2,17¢) — — (1,179
18C 2 2,33¢ — — 2,34(
— — (690) — — (690)
— — 1,101 — (83,37() (82,269
— — 7,33( — — 7,33(
73,39 $ 73: $ 326,00 $ 2,37 $ 7,90 $ 337,02

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financitegtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

(in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid —in Comprehensive Retained
Shares  Amount Capital (Loss) Income Earnings Total

Balance, December 31, 2009 73,39: $ 734 $ 326,006 $ 2,371 $ 7,902 $ 337,02
Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 53,45 53,45:

Translation adjustment — — — 192 — 192

Unrealized holding gain, net of tax of

$372 — — — 60¢ — 60¢

Reclassification adjustment for gains

realized in net income, net of tax of

$20 — — — (33) — (33
Total comprehensive income 54,21¢
Stock issuances (repurchases), net 484 5 (2,500 — — (2,495
Exercise of stock options 121 1 1,56z — — 1,56:
Excess benefit from stock-based
arrangements — — 2,50¢ — — 2,504
Dividends paid — — 1,43¢ — (85,08 (83,649
Stock compensation costs — — 7,57¢ — — 7,57¢
Balance, December 31, 2010 7399 $ 74 $ 33659 $ 3,14 $ (23,72) $ 316,74

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financategtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to r@sthcprovided by operating

activities:

Amortization of feature film production atse
Depreciation and amortization
Realized (gains) losses on sales of investsne
Amortization of investment income
Stock compensation costs
Unrealized (gain) loss on revaluation of raats
Provision for doubtful accounts
Provision for inventory obsolescence
(Benefit) provision for deferred income taxe
Excess tax benefits from stock-based paymeangements
Reimbursement of operating expenses by iptanstockholder
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and othatgass

Feature film production assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and othéiliiges

Deferred income

Net cash provided beigiing activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment and atbsets

Proceeds from infrastructure incentives

Purchases of short-term investments

Proceeds from sales or maturities of stenmtinvestments
Net cash (used in) led by investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Repayment of long-term debt

Issuance of stock, net

Dividends paid

Net proceeds from exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from stock-based paymeangements
Net cash used in finaga@ctivities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the period for income tares of refunds
Cash paid during the period for interest

For the years ended December, 31

2010 2009 2008
$ 5345. $ 50,30: $ 4541¢
13,00( 3,91¢ 15,61¢
11,707 14,42 13,08:
(53) (1,027) 232
1,827 952 657
7,57¢ 7,38¢ 7,95¢
(610) 1,05( 3,031
774 8,55¢ 2,521
2,44¢ 1,991 2,67¢
(2,410 672 6,60¢
(2,759 (139) (1,08))
— — 1,95(
9,90¢ (11,159 (6,989)
(2,359 78E (2,920)
(14,64%) 18,86+ (7,402)
(32,53 (9,947) (25,52
(2,841) 2,94¢ (3,617)
(14,760) 12,08! (11,26
12,07+ 14,72¢ (4,719
39,80« 116,40’ 36,24
(12,319 (5,525) (26,56
4,13( - ;
(96,75’ (54,599 (119,49)
64,55 53,68 167,79
(40,38:) (6,43)) 21, 74(
(1,087) (1,007) (927)
1,027 951 84z
(83,649 (82,26¢) (81,39)
1,562 2,34( 6,26¢
2,75¢ 132 1,081
(79,382 (79,847 (74,137
(79,96 30,12¢ (16,15()
149,78 119,65 135,80
$ 6982 $ 149,78 $ 119,65
$ 31,047 $ 1087C $ 16,68
$ 261 $ 341 $ 41€



See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeBtents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial stat@siinclude the accounts of WWE. “WWEgfers to World Wrestling Entertainment, |
and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwgxpiires. References to “we,” “us,” “our” and th€dmpany” refer to WWE and i
subsidiaries. We are an integrated media and airterént company, principally engaged in the develemt, production and marketing
television and pay-periew event programming and live events and thenBogy and sale of consumer products featuring oands. OL
operations are organized around four principalvéis:

Live and Televised Entertainment

e Revenues consist principally of ticket sales te Imvents, sales of merchandise at these live evewision rights fees, sales
television advertising and sponsorships, and feesiéwing our pay-per-view and video-on-demandgpamming.

Consumer Products

e Revenues consist principally of the sales of WW&dpced home videos and magazine publishing andtieyar license fees relatec
various WWE themed products such as video gamgs ataed books.

Digital Media

e Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, sale of merchandise on our welisiteigh our WWEShop interr
storefront and sales of various broadband and mabihtent.

WWE Studios

e Revenues consist of receipts from the distributibfiimed entertainment .

All intercompany transactions and balances have leéiminated. Effective April 1, 2009, as a resaflireconsidering contract element:
certain international live event contracts, thecaicting treatment for these transactions was chihpgespectively to reflect these transact
on a gross basis pursuant to relevant accountegture. Previously, these contracts were inctyregported on a net basis. The impact o
accounting of these contracts prior to April 1, 2@¢as not material to any of the periods preserged therefore, have not been adjusted.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhi@ United Statt
of America requires our management to make estsraaid assumptions that affect the reported amadirstssets and liabilities and disclosi
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amafntsvenue and expenses during the repc
period. Actual results could differ from those esties.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depositernight deposit accounts and investments inay
market accounts.

Investment Securities, Net We classify all of our investments as availaldedale securities. Such investments consist primanf
municipal bonds, including pre-refunded municipahtls, corporate bonds and auction rate secunitigish are classified as nanwrent due t
continued failures of the auction mechanism thheatise would provide liquidity to these investngerill of these investments are state
fair value, with unrealized gains and losses omsgcurities reflected, net of tax, as other cofmgmeive income (loss) in stockholdeesjuity
Realized gains and losses on investments are iedlidearnings and are derived using the sped#atification method for determining 1
cost of securities sold.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (comtued)

Accounts Receivable- Accounts receivable relate principally to amouwtig to us from pay-paniew providers and television networks
pay-perview presentations and television programming, eepely, and balances due from the sale of hondeos and magazines. (
accounts receivable represent a significant porioour current assets. We are required to estittetecollectibility of our receivables anc
establish allowances for the amount of accountsivable that we estimate to be uncollectible. Wsebthese allowances on our histol
collection experience, the length of time our acteueceivable are outstanding and the financiatlitmn of individual customers.

Inventory— Inventory consists of merchandise sold on a disat#s basis, and DVDs, which are sold through veabdedistributors ar
retailers. Substantially all of our inventory isngrised of finished goods. Inventory is statedhat fower of cost (first-in, firseut basis) ¢
market. The valuation of our inventories requiresnagement to make market estimates assessing #imiteas and the prices at which
believe the inventory can be sold.

Feature Film Production Assets, NetFeature film production assets are recorded atalse of production, including production overh
and net of production incentives. The costs foriradividual film will be amortized in the proportiothat revenues bear to management’
estimates of the ultimate revenue expected to lsegrézed from exploitation, exhibition or sale afch film. Each reporting peri
management reviews, and when necessary revisestiitsate revenue and cost estimates, which mayltrés a change in the rate
amortization of film costs and/or write-down of all a portion of the unamortized costs of the fitnits estimated fair value.

Property and Equipmert— Property and equipment are stated at historicat nes of benefits associated with tax incentivess
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Deptieciaand amortization are computed on a straligiet-basis over the estimated useful |
of the assets or, when applicable, the life ofldzese, whichever is shorter. Vehicles and equipraemtdepreciated based on estimated L
lives varying from three to five years. Buildingsdarelated improvements are depreciated basedtonagsd useful lives varying from five
thirty-nine years. Our corporate aircraft is defatsd over ten years on a straight-line basisdessstimated residual value of $9,500.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying amountarfgived assets when events and circumstances w
such a review.

Income Taxes— Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognizethe expected future tax consequences of etkatdhave been reflect
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Defetagdiabilities and assets are determined baseth®mifferences between the book anc
bases of particular assets and liabilities and aipey loss carryforwards, using tax rates in effectthe years in which the differences
expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is ghedito offset deferred tax assets if, based up@@athilable evidence, including considers
of tax planning strategies, it is more-likely-thaot that some or all of the deferred tax assetsnwil be realized.

Revenue Recognitior- Revenues are generally recognized when productsteépped or as services are performed. However taltles
nature of several of our business lines, theraddéitional steps in the revenue recognition procssiescribed below.

e Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-per-view programming are roEmb when the event is aired and are based upoimibiai estimate of the number
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atipinary buy information received from our pay-péew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-pewniew buys generally occurs within one year and aopsequent adjustments to the buys are recognirdtiei period ne
information is received.

e Sponsorships:

Through our sponsorship packages, we offeeriders a full range of our promotional vehicliesJuding internet and print advertising, on-
air announcements and special appearances by persars. We assign the total sponsorship reveouég various elements contained wi
a sponsorship package based on objective andleebaldence of fair value and their relative faitues.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (comtued)

Our relative fair values for the sponsorship eletmame based upon a combination of historical praoed current advertising market conditi
Revenue from these packages is recognized as kambrd is delivered.

e Licensing:

Revenues from our licensed products are recogniped receipt of reports from the individual licees¢hat detail the royalties generate
related product sales. If we receive licensing adea, such payments are recorded as deferred ewrliare recognized as income v
earned.

e Home video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles azerded at the later of delivery by our distributorwholesalers, or the date that tf
products are made widely available for sale byilers net of an allowance for estimated returrse @llowance for estimated returns is bi
on historical information and current industry tsn

e Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whemd#wazine is shipped, net of an allowance for egtoh returns. We estimate
allowance for newsstand returns based upon ouewesf historical return rates and the expectedgperénce of our current titles in relatior
prior issue return rates.

e TV rights:

Rights fees received from distributors of our t&d@n programming, both domestically and interradity, are recorded when the prog
has been delivered to the distributor and is akkeldor exhibition. Our typical distribution agreent is between one and five years in le
and frequently provides for contractual increasesr dts term. Expenses incurred in the productibow weekly television programming i
expensed when the programming is first availabtefibition.

e Films:

Revenue recognition for our feature films variepateding on the method of distribution and the extdrcontrol the Company exerci
over the distribution and related expenses. Wecgsersignificant control over setfistributed films and as a result, we record distibr
revenue and related expenses on a gross basis fimaocial statements. For selfstributed films we record revenue from the thieatrreleas
of the feature film at the time of exhibition basadour participation in box office receipts. Homideo revenues, TV rights, pay-péew, anc
or video-on-demand sales are recognized for filorsistent with our existing policies.

In instances where third party distribution partneontrol the distribution and marketing of filnfki€ensed films”)we recognize reven
on a net basis after third party studios recoufrilligion fees and expenses and the results hase teported to us. This typically occur:
periods subsequent to the initial release of the fi

Film and Television Production Incentives The Company has access to various governmentatgmagthat are designed to promote
and television production within the United Statewl certain international jurisdictions. Tax cred#arned with respect to expenditure
qualifying film, television and other productiont@dies, including qualifying capital projects,aincluded as an offset to the related asset
an offset to production expenses when we have naaé® assurance regarding the realizable amouhedbx credits. During 2010 we recei
$4,303 of incentives relating to feature film protians and $4,202 relating to qualifying capitabjpcts which reduced the related assets
also received $6,124 of incentives relating touisien and other productions which were recordecaasoffset to the related product
expenses.

Advertising Expense- Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, eXoeptosts related to the development of a majorroencial o
media campaign which are expensed in the periodhith the commercial or campaign is first presenteor 2010, 2009 and 2008,
recorded advertising expenses of $6,018, $5,03%48B77, respectively.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (comtued)

Foreign Currency Translatior— For the translation of the financial statement®wf foreign subsidiaries whose functional curresce
not U.S. Dollars, assets and liabilities are tratesl at the yeagnd exchange rate, and income statement accountisamslated at avere
exchange rates for the year. The resulting trapslatdjustments are recorded in accumulated otbempeehensive income, a componer
stockholders’equity. Foreign currency transactions are recomtethe exchange rate prevailing at the transadate, with any gains/loss
recorded in other income/expense.

Stock-Based Compensatier New, modified and unvested shdra@sed payment transactions with employees, sucstog& options
performance stock units and restricted stock umits, recognized in the financial statements basedheir fair value and recognized
compensation expense over the vesting period.

Derivative Instruments- We hold warrants received from certain publiclydgd companies with whom we had licensing or distrdn
agreements. Warrants received from these licensees initially recorded at their estimated fair walon the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. That amount was medras deferred revenue and is amortized into bpgrimcome over the life of the rela
agreements using straiglite amortization. For 2010, 2009 and 2008, we ma@ed revenues of $0, $475 and $493, respectivelgted to th
amortization of deferred revenue resulting from tbeeipt of such warrants. Subsequent to recdiptwarrants are adjusted to their estim
fair value each quarter, with changes in fair vahetuded in other income (expense).

Earnings Per Share (EPS)We present both basic and diluted EPS amountsc %5 is calculated by dividing net income by thegghtec
average number of common shares outstanding dthimg/ear. Diluted EPS is based upon the weightedtage number of common ¢
common equivalent shares outstanding during the wyiéch is calculated using the treasstgck method. Common equivalent shares
excluded from the computation in periods in whiceyt have an anti-dilutive effect.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Stassl&oard (FASB) issued an accounting standard ep@glarding revenue recognit
for multiple deliverable arrangements. This updatgiires the use of the relative selling price métivhen allocating revenue in these type
arrangements. This method allows a vendor to gskeist estimate of selling price if neither vensipecific objective evidence nor third p
evidence of selling price exists when evaluatindtiple deliverable arrangements. This standard tgpdaeffective January 1, 2011 and ma
adopted prospectively for revenue arrangementseghiato or materially modified after the date dbation or retrospectively for all rever
arrangements for all periods presented. We arewctlyrevaluating the impact that this standard tgadll have on our consolidated finant
statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued amendments tac¢heunting standards related to the disclosurestadoo entitys use of fair valt
measurements. Among these amendments, entitiebevilbquired to provide enhanced disclosures apaunsfers into and out of the Leve
(fair value determined based on quoted prices fivaenarkets for identical assets and liabilitiagy Level 2 (fair value determined base:
significant other observable inputs) classificasioprovide separate disclosures about purchades, ssuances and settlements relating t
tabular reconciliation of beginning and ending bats of the Level 3 (fair value determined basedsigmificant unobservable inpu
classification and provide greater disaggregat@mrefich class of assets and liabilities that usevédue measurements. Except for the det
Level 3 rollforward disclosures, the new standard is effecfivethe Company for interim and annual reportingiqges beginning aft
December 31, 2009. The adoption of this accounstagdards amendment did not have a material impadhe Companyg consolidate
financial statements. The requirement to provideitiel disclosures about the purchases, salesarises and settlements in the foliwarc
activity for Level 3 fair value measurements ieefive for the Company for interim and annual réipgrperiods beginning after December
2010. The adoption of this pronouncement did @Beeha material effect on our consolidated finanstatements.

In February 2010, the FASB issued an amendmerite@tcounting standards related to the accountingahd disclosure of, subseqt
events in an entitg' consolidated financial statements. This standamnds the authoritative guidance for subsequeentsvthat we
previously issued and among other things exemptsirfies and Exchange Commission registrants froenrequirement to disclose the ¢
through which it has evaluated subsequent eventsittoer original or restated financial statemefiitsis standard does not apply to subsec
events or transactions that are within the scopsther applicable Generally Accepted Accountingnéigles that provides different guidance
the accounting treatment for subsequent eventsansdctions. The adoption of this standard didhaet a material impact on the Company’
consolidated financial statements.
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3. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and diluted egsiper share, we used the following weighted @e@mmon shares outstanding
thousands):

2010 2009 200¢
Basic 74,57( 73,76: 72,88¢
Diluted 75,301 74,28 73,52
Dilutive effect of outstanding options 14 - 61
Dilutive effect of restricted and performance stocits 71€ 51¢ 571
Dilutive effect of employee share purchase plan 4 3 2
Anti-dilutive outstanding options, end of year - 192 157

Net income per share of Class A Common Stock ard<CB Common Stock is computed in accordance withioa class method
earnings allocation. Any undistributed earningsdach period are allocated to each class of constank based on the proportionate sha
the amount of cash dividends that each class ideghto receive. As there were no undistributechizsys for years ended December 31, ©
and 2009, basic and diluted income per share weasaime for both the Class A and Class B stockhalder
4. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investments

Investments consisted of the following:

December 31, 2010

Unrealized
Holding

Amortized Gain Fair

Cost (Loss) Value
Auction rate securities $ 16,000 $ (963 $ 15,03}
Municipal bonds 74,76¢ 33¢ 75,10t
Corporate bonds 22,01t 4 22,01¢
Total $ 112,78 % 620 $ 112,16

December 31, 2009

Unrealized
Holding

Amortized Gain Fair

Cost (Loss) Value
Auction rate securities $ 24400 $ (2,030 $ 22,37(
Municipal bonds 48,10¢ 427 48,53t
Corporate bonds 9,84¢ 56 9,90¢
Total $ 8235 $ (1,54) $ 80,81

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and DesreBih 2009, available-faale securities were sold for total proceeds of H&3lan:
$53,687, respectively. The gross realized gainshese sales totaled $53 and $1,022 in 2010 and, 266Pectively. Net unrealized hold
losses on available-farale securities in the amount of $620 and $1,547He years ended December 31, 2010 and Decemhe2089
respectively, have been included in accumulatedratbmprehensive income.

Management deems investments to be impaired whdachne in fair value is judged to be other-thamporary. If the cost of :
investment exceeds its fair value, we evaluate,raputher factors, general market conditions, thatitn and extent to which the fair valu
less than cost, as well as the ability to hold iateht not to sell the investmel



In February 2008, we started to experience difficaélling our investment in auction rate secusifffARS") due to multiple
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4. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investmentécontinued)

failures of the auction mechanism that would otheevprovide liquidity to these investments. Theusigies for which auctions have failed v
continue to accrue interest and be auctioned e8®idays until the auction succeeds, the issues tiadl securities, or they mature. Accordir
there may be no effective mechanism for sellings¢hsecurities and we may own lotlegm securities; as such, we have classifiec
investment in ARS as noturrent investments. As of December 31, 2010, the@ny had $15,037 of auction rate securities whalre bee
valued at their estimated fair value, based orseatinted cash flow analysis which considered, anotingr things, the quality of the underly
collateral, the credit rating of the issuers, ameste of when these securities are either expeotbdve a successful auction or otherwise ri
to par value and expected interest income to beived over this period. Because of the inherenfestibity in valuing these securities, we ¢
obtained independent valuations for each of our AR$f December 31, 2010 in estimating their falugs. During the current year, $8,40
ARS were redeemed at par by the issuer.

As of December 31, 2010 we do not believeutnealized loss position in these securities of3§86other-thartemporary, and as such,
unrealized loss has been recorded as part of adatedwther comprehensive income in our Consoldi&mtement of Stockholdergquity
and Comprehensive Income. We do not feel that direvialue adjustment is other-théemporary at this time due to the high under!
creditworthiness of the issuer (including the bagkof the loans comprising the collateral packagéhle United States Government), and b
on our intent not to sell the securities and odrebehat it is not more likely than not that welwbe required to sell the securities be
recovery of their anticipated amortized cost basis.

In addition to the investments described abovealse hold warrants which we received from certaibligly traded companies with whe
we had licensing agreements. The estimated fairevaf these warrants, determined using the Bideles model, was $687, $77 and $1
as of December 31, 2010, December 31, 2009 andnbEme31, 2008, respectively, and is included ireotturrent assets at December
2010. We recognized mark to market adjustments6aD$$(1,050) and $(3,031) during 2010, 2009 ar@B2@espectively, relating to the
warrants, which is included in other expense, net.

5. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is determined based on the exchange et would be received to sell an asset or gatdansfer a liability in the principal
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipat the measurement date. Fair valut
marketbased measurement based on assumptions that "rparkietpants” would use to price the asset oriliigbAccordingly, the framewor
considers markets or observable inputs as the rpeefesource of value followed by assumptions basedypothetical transactions, in
absence of market inputs. The fair value shoulddleulated based on assumptions that market geatits would use in pricing the asse
liability, not on assumptions specific to the entitn addition, the fair value of assets and li¢ie should include consideration of non-
performance risk including the Company’s own creigi.

Additionally, the guidance establishes a thiee!| hierarchy that ranks the quality and religyibf information used in developing f
value estimates. The hierarchy gives the highéstiprto quoted prices in active markets and thedst priority to unobservable data. In ci
where two or more levels of inputs are used torddtee fair value, a financial instrument's levelistermined based on the lowest level i
that is considered significant to the fair valueasi@ement in its entirety. The three levels offtlievalue hierarchy are summarized as follows:

Level 1- quoted prices in active markets for idegitassets or liabilities;
Level 2- quoted prices in active markets for similasets and liabilities and inputs that are olagdevfor the asset or liability; or
Level 3- unobservable inputs, such as discounteld fftaw models or valuations

F-13




Table of Contents
WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

5. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

The following assets are required to be measuréairatalue on a recurring basis and the clasgificawithin the hierarchy as of Decem
31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively:

Significant
Other Significant
Quoted Market Observable  Unobservable Fair Value at
Prices in Active Inputs Inputs December 31
Markets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2010
Municipal bonds $ - $ 75100 % - % 75,10¢
Auction rate securities - - 15,03: 15,03}
Corporate bonds - 22,01¢ - 22,01¢
Other - 687 - 687
Total $ - $ 9781 $ 15,037 $ 112,84¢
Significant
Other Significant
Quoted Market Observable  Unobservable Fair Value at
Prices in Active Inputs Inputs December 31
Markets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2009
Municipal bonds $ - $ 4853 3 - % 48,53t
Auction rate securities - - 22,37( 22,37(
Corporate bonds - 9,90¢ - 9,90¢
Other - 77 - 77
Total $ - $ 58517 $ 22,370 $ 80,88’

Certain financial instruments are carried @ton the consolidated balance sheets, which gippates fair value due to their shaetrm
highly liquid nature. The carrying amounts of cashsh equivalents, money market accounts, accaegtivable and accounts pay:
approximate fair value because of the short-tertureaof such instruments.

We have classified our investment in municipal lmrwbrporate bonds and warrants within Level Zhas waluation requires quoted pri
for similar instruments in active markets, quoteites for identical or similar instruments in markéhat are not active and/or modelse:
valuation techniques for which all significant inpuare observable in the market or can be corrobdray observable market data
substantially the full term of the assets or ligiei. The corporate and municipal bonds are vahaskd on model driven valuations whereb
significant inputs, including benchmark yields, oged trades, brokedealer quotes, issue spreads, benchmark secubititss,offers and oth
market related data are observable or can be defigen or corroborated by observable market datasddstantially the full term of the as:
WWE utilizes a pricing service to assist managenmenbtaining fair value pricing of this investmeaurtfolio. Pricing for securities is based
proprietary models, and inputs are documented ooraance with the fair value measurements hierarGine estimated fair value of ¢
warrants was determined using the Black-Scholeseinod

We have classified our investment in ARS within €e8 as their valuation requires substantial judgnaad estimation of factors that
not currently observable in the market due to #uod lof trading in the securities. The fair valuah# ARS, as consistent with prior periods,
estimated through discounted cash flow models, kvltonsider, among other things, the timing of exp@duture successful auctio
collateralization of underlying security investmemind the risk of default by the issuer. We wilhtioue to assess the carrying value of
ARS on each reporting date, based on the factgiatuinstances surrounding diguidity needs and developments in the ARS markatsinc
the current year, $8,400 of ARS were redeemed &ysguer at par value.
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5. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

The table below includes a roll forward of duevel 3 assets (ARS) from January 1 to Decembdoi32010 and 2009:

Significant Significant
Unobservable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3) (Level 3)
Fair value January 1, 2010 $ 22,37  Fair value January 1, 2009 $ 22,29¢
Purchases - Purchases -
Redemptions/Proceeds (8,400 Redemptions/Proceeds (450
Transfers in - Transfers in -
Realized gain - Realized gain -
Unrealized gain 1,067 Unrealized gain 521
Fair value December 31, 2010 $ 15,037  Fair value December 31, 2009 $ 22,37(
6. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the fdthguw
December 31, December 31,
2010 2009

Land, buildings and improvements $ 7576 $ 74,360

Equipment 70,69¢ 67,527

Corporate aircraft 20,85¢ 20,85¢

Vehicles 1,54z 537

168,85" 163,28!

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (87,867 (78,909

Total $ 80,99 $ 84,37¢

During 2010 we received tax credits relating to infrastructure improvements in conjunction withr deansition to high definitio
broadcasting. The credits were realized at $4,h80xere recorded as a reduction of the relatedsasse

Depreciation expense was $11,504, $13,396 and $3,1ii7 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Deprieiatxpense for the twelve mon
ended December 31, 2010 reflects a time benefit of $1,674 from the recognition of afrastructure tax credit discussed above. The t
was used to reduce the carrying value of the asseat$ their in service date and consequently djgsement to depreciation expense reflect:
revised amount incurred to date. The credit wasived in the current year but related to assetseplén service in prior years.
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7. Feature Film Production Assets
Feature film production assets are summardzaeidllows:

December 31 December 31

2010 2009
Feature film productions:

In release $ 27,36¢ $ 27,77
Completed but not released 27,612 -
In production - 8,47:
In development 1,27: 80¢
Total $ 56,25¢ $ 37,05!

In the current year, we released two thedtfilcas, LegendaryandKnucklehead Legendary and Knuckleheadmprise $2,467 and $3,8
respectively, of our “In release” feature film asséegendarywas the first film release under our revised disttion model in which w
control the distribution and marketing of our protions. The distribution and marketing of our poms releases were controlled by
distribution partners and we participated in praiseafter our distribution partners recouped theemses and distribution fees. Under our
distribution model, we record revenues and expewses gross basis in our financial statements. tafdilly, under our new model t
Company records distribution expenses, includingegtising and other exploitation costs, in our fingl statements as incurred. During
current year, we recorded $5,240 and $3,515 innewéor Legendaryand Knucklehead respectively, and $3,9%nd $2,135 in distributic
expenses fokegendaryandKnucklehead respectively.

In the prior year we released one theatrical fillf, Rounds and one Direct-to-DVD filmBehind Enemy Lines: Colombia. 12 Rot
comprises $16,187 of our “In release” feature flssets, anBehind Enemy Lines: Colombiamprises $918 of “In releas&ature film asset

Feature film production assets are recorded n#teohssociated benefit of production incentivegimduthe year ended December 31, 2
and 2009, we received $4,303 and $4,289, respégctioé production incentives from domestic and imional feature film productic
activities.

Unamortized feature film production assets arewatald for impairment each reporting period. If ddods indicate a potential impairme
and the estimated fair value of a film is not geedhan the unamortized asset, the asset will littewrdown to fair value. As of December
2010, we do not believe any capitalized assetsidited in Feature Film Production Assets are impaired

Approximately 6 3% of “In release” film producti@ssets are estimated to be amortized over thel@extonths and approximately 9G8f
“In release” film production assets are estimatetle amortized over the next three years.

We currently have five theatrical films designatesl“Completed but not releasedi/e also have capitalized certain script develop
costs for various other film projects. Capitalizegtipt development costs are evaluated at eachtieg@eriod for impairment if, and wher
project is deemed to be abandoned. Approximately828 and $886 of previously capitalized developioests were expensed for abandc
projects in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

F-16




Table of Contents
WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

8. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities coedisif the following:

December 31 December 31

2010 2009

Accrued pay-per-view event costs $ 358 $ 3,99
Accrued payroll and bonus related costs 6,63¢ 11,49¢
Accrued television costs 3,50(C 2,83¢
Accrued home video production and distribution 2,65¢ 4,76
Accrued other 8,10¢ 12,067
Total $ 2447¢ $ 35,164

Accrued other includes accruals for our publishilegal and professional, and licensing busineswities, none of which exceeds 5%
current liabilities.

9. Debt
In 1997, we entered into a mortgage loan agreeomater which we borrowed $12,000 at an annual ieteege of 7.6% with a maturity di

of December 31, 2013. Principal and interest afgetpaid in 180 monthly installments of approxinha®&l12. The loan is collateralized by
executive offices and television studio in Stamf&@dnnecticut.

As of December 31, 2010 the scheduled principaysmnts under our mortgage obligation were asvaio

For the year ending December 31, 2011 1,16¢
For the year ending December 31, 2012 1,262
For the year ending December 31, 2013 35¢
Total $ 2,79

10. Income Taxes

For 2010, 2009 and 2008, we were taxed on our ieciom continuing operations at an effective tate raf 34.8%, 36.7% and 34.5

respectively. Our income tax provision for 201002@nd 2008 was $28,488, $29,127 and $23,940,ataply, and included federal, state .
foreign taxes.

The components of our tax provision (benefit):

2010 2009 2008
Current:
Federal $ 27,27¢ $ 2452 $ 16,08¢
State and local 2,97t 3,59¢ 26E
Foreign 647 338 981
Deferred:
Federal (1,762 1,33d 6,45
State and local (599 (644) 161
Foreign (55) (21) 9)
Total $ 28,48t $ 29,127 $ 23,94(
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10. Income Taxes (continued)

Components of income before income taxes afelws:

2010 2009 2008
u.s. $ 79,78 $ 7858( $ 67,72
International subsidiaries 2,151 85C 1,63:
Income before income taxes $ 8194 $ 7943( $ 69,35¢

The following sets forth the difference between phevision for income taxes computed at the U.8efal statutory income tax rate of 3

and that reported for financial statement purposes:

2010 2009 2008
Statutory U.S. federal tax at 35% $ 2867¢ $ 27,800 $ 24,27t
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit 1,292 1,05¢ 90¢
Foreign rate differential (202) (150 264
Tax exempt interest income (50€) (57€) (1,489
Qualified production activity deduction (2,135 (809) (569
Valuation allowance - (1,590 10¢
Unrecognized tax benefits 582 3,02¢ (23¢€)
Other 78C 36¢ 67¢
Provision for income taxes $ 2848t $ 29,127 $ 23,94(

The tax effects of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities consisted o

following.
December 31, December 31,
2010 2009

Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable $ 4437 % 4,291
Inventory 4,06¢ 4,19
Prepaid royalties 11,58¢ 6,54(
Stock options/stock compensation 2,88( 1,101
Credits and net operating loss carryforwards 1,41¢ 1,22¢
Investments - 56¢
Intangible assets 2,99¢ 3,14¢
Accrued liabilities and reserves 597 711
Indirect income tax benefit 3,64¢ 3,052
Deferred tax assets, gross 31,63! 24,83(
Valuation allowance (1,419 (1,219
Deferred tax assets, net 30,21¢ 23,61¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment depreciation (3,097 (3,499
Capitalized feature film production costs (19,225 (14,639
Investments (©)] 0
Total deferred tax assets, net $ 789 % 5,48¢
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10. Income Taxes (continued)

The temporary differences described above repratifietences between the tax basis of assets bitifies and amounts reported in
consolidated financial statements that will resnltaxable or deductible amounts in future yearemvthe reported amounts of the asse
liabilities are recovered or settled. As of DecemBg, 2010 and 2009, $17,128 and $11,655, respdgtiof the deferred tax assets, net,
categorized as current assets and the remaining3§Pand $(6,171), respectively, are in Namrent income tax liabilities, in our consolide
balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009,adevhluation allowances of $1,413 and $1,214, asmdy, to reduce our deferr
tax assets to an amount more likely than not teebevered. This valuation allowance relates todssscurred as a result of our Australian
entities, and are not expected to be realized.

We are subject to periodic audits of our variousrgturns by government agencies which could raéaybiossible tax liabilities. Althoug
the outcome of these matters cannot currently bermiéned, we believe the outcome of these auditsnei have a material effect on «
financial statements.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided for orrcegpately $4,953 of unremitted earnings of oureinational subsidiaries. The
earnings are expected to be indefinitely reinvestagtseas. It is not practical to compute the estich deferred tax liability on these earni
Any additional U.S. taxes payable on the remairforgign earnings, if remitted, would be substahtiaiffset by credits for foreign tax
already paid.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

In July 2006, the FASB issued authoritative guidanegarding accounting for the uncertainty in ineotaxes. The guidance clarifies
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimprobability threshold that a tax position musteinigefore a financial statement benel
recognized.

At December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, webhadi84 ($8,835 net of federal benefit) and $10,831928 net of federal benef
respectively, of unrecognized tax benefits andeelanterest and penalties, all of which would efffeur effective tax rate if recognized.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, $6,651 andr&pectively of unrecognized tax benefits and eelanterest and penaltiesduce:
refundable income taxes, which are recorded in &depxpenses and other current assets on the atsol balance she€the remainin
$5,833 and $10,981, respectively, are includedan-surrent income tax liabilities, in our consolield balance sheets.

We file income tax returns in the U.S., variougedaand various foreign jurisdictions. With a fexceptions, all tax years before Decen
31, 2006 are no longer subject to income tax exatitins by tax authorities. Based upon the expinatib statutes of limitations in seve
jurisdictions and potential resolution of outstarglaudits, the Company believes it is reasonabssipte that the total amount of previot
unrecognized tax benefits may decrease by approeiyn®7,487 within 12 months of December 31, 2010.

Unrecognized Tax benefits Tabular Reconciliation

2010 2009 2008
Beginning Balance- January 1 $ 907¢ $ 6,08 $ 9,541
Increase to unrecognized tax benefits recordegddsitions taken

during the current year 1,80( 2,93 1,78
Increase (decrease) to unrecognized tax benefitsded for

positions taken during a prior period 584 27¢ (210
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits relatingtibesnents with

taxing authorities - (70 (3,049
Decrease to unrecognized tax benefits resulting fidapse of the

applicable statute of limitations (2,379 (142 (2,082
Ending Balance- December 31 $ 10,08 $ 9,07¢ $ 6,08
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10. Income Taxes (continued)

We recognize potential accrued interest and p&salélated to uncertain tax positions in incomeetgpense. We have approximately $2
of accrued interest and $247 of accrued penaléileded to uncertain tax positions as of December2810. At December 31, 2009, we
approximately $1,693 of accrued interest and $ZX&orued penalties related to uncertain tax possti

11. Film and Television Production Incentives

The Company has access to various governmentatgnsgthat are designed to promote film and telemigiroduction within the Unite
States and certain international jurisdictions. Teedits earned with respect to expenditures offifgung film, television and other producti
activities, including qualifying capital projectse included as an offset to the related asset anaffset to production expenses when we
reasonable assurance regarding the realizable ambtine tax credits. During 2010 we received $8,80 incentives relating to feature fi
productions and $4,130 relating to qualifying cabjirojects which reduced the related assets. Werakeived $6,124 of incentives relatin
television and other productions which were recdrde an offset to the related production experiBasng 2009, we received $4,289
incentives relating to feature film production &&]330 of incentives relating to television andentproductions.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, including various naneelable operating leases, performance contreitls various performers a
employment agreements with certain executive affice

Future minimum payments as of December 31, 201e@muheé agreements described above were as follows:

Operating
Lease Other
Commitments Commitments Total
For the year ending December 31, 2011 $ 197¢ $ 24797 $ 26,77¢
For the year ending December 31, 2012 1,56 13,70! 15,26:
For the year ending December 31, 2013 1,427 10,27¢ 11,70:
For the year ending December 31, 2014 1,31¢ 7,55¢ 8,871
For the year ending December 31, 2015 1,31¢ 1,78¢ 3,107
Thereafter 1,87¢ 8,28( 10,15¢
Total $ 948: $ 66,39¢ $ 75,88:

Rent expense under operating leases included itincémy operations was approximately $2,263, $2,648 $2,758 for 2010, 2009 ¢
2008, respectively.

Legal Proceeding:

World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for Nature artsl American affiliate, the World Wildlife Fund (dettively, the “Fund”)instituted lege
proceedings against us in the English High Cowekisgy injunctive relief and unspecified damagesdieged breaches of a 1994 agreel
between the Fund and us regarding the use of thalsn'wwif”. In August 2001, a High Court judge granted the Fanabtion for summa
judgment, holding that we breached the agreemenidiyg the initials“'wwf” in connection with certain of our website addressed ou
former scratch logo. The English Court of Appediseguently upheld that ruling. As a result we atgiect to an injunction barring us, eit
directly or indirectly, from most uses of the ial§ “wwf.”

As part of its original complaint, the Fund inclada damages claim. On October 29, 2004, the Fuled di claim for, among other thin
substantial monetary claims in an amount calcul@®d royalty based on certain percentages of mfitpover the period January 1¢
through November 2002. The English courts haveetkttie Fund’s claim for profitased damages. We strongly believe that the Fusichd
suffered any loss or damage, and would vigorousfeml against any other type of damage claim ifFined attempted, after so many year
amend its complaint to assert one. Based upon ehisidns of the English courts, we do not belidvis matter will have a material adve
effect on our financial condition, results of ogeas or liquidity.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)
IPO Class Action

In December 2001, a purported class action comipleas filed against us and certain of our offidershe United States District Court
the Southern District of New York alleging violat® of federal securities laws relating to our alipublic offering in 1999. According to t
claims, the underwriters, who were also named &ndants, allegedly engaged in manipulative prastisy, among other things, peHinc
allotments of shares of our stock in return forigolkbsed, excessive commissions from the purchasafr entering into after-market fre-
arrangements to artificially inflate the Compasystock price. The complaint further alleges that kmew or should have known of s
unlawful practices. In or around March 2009, thetipa agreed to a global settlement of the litigatin its entirety. On April 2, 2009, t
plaintiffs filed a motion for preliminary approvaf settlement, which was granted by the court ljeodated June 10, 2009. On Octobr
2009, the court granted final approval of the sat#nt agreement, and various objectors have fidides to appeal this decision. The Comy
is a party to the settlement and is not one ofptimties appealing the settlement’s approval. Weuagble to predict whether theappeals wi
be successful, but assuming they are unsuccessfulh@ settlement is completed, no financial obliggahas been or will be incurred by
Company and accordingly, no loss has been or willdzognized.

Other Matters

We are not currently a party to any other matdeghl proceedings. However, we are involved in sdvether suits and claims in 1
ordinary course of business, the outcome of whecimdt expected to have a material adverse effeaunfinancial condition, results
operations or liquidity. We may from time to timedmme a party to other legal proceedings.

13. Related Party Transactions

Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Dimst and Chief Executive Officer, controls approxieta88% of the voting power
the issued and outstanding shares of our commak.stiwrough the beneficial ownership of a substdmiajority of our Class B comm
stock, Mr. McMahon can effectively exercise contveér our affairs.

In February 2008, the Company increased its quantéridend from $0.24 to $0.36 per share. At tiate, the McMahon family and th
trusts entered into an agreement with the Compamyaive the increased portion of the dividend fibshares of Class A and Class B comi
stock beneficially held by the family for a periofithree years, which has now expired. Any newdtinid waiver is subject two things. Th
first is the receipt of approval of the Internal@eue Service, which has been obtained. The seisoride agreement of members of
McMahon family. No determination has been madehgyMcMahon family to enter into a new waiver agreatn

On September 16, 2009, Linda McMahon resigned asf Elxecutive Officeiof the Company and announced her candidacy foUtiitec
States Senate, representing the State of Connechits. McMahons election team engaged the Company to producaimceslevisiol
advertisements during the initial months of the paign. The Company performed these services andyetiahe campaign the fair mar
value for the provided television production seegicwhich was $360 and $162 in 2010 and 2009, c&sply. In addition, Mrs. McMahc
rented personal office space from the Company foeréod of two and one half months for which ther@any received approximately $2:
2009, which represented the fair market value efatffice space utilized.

In June 2008, the Company performed a brand awsser@mpaign entitled McMahanMillion Dollar Mania™, whereby a total of $3,C
in cash prize awards was given away to viewersuf“®onday Night RAW” television program. The prize money for this cargpava:
personally funded by Vincent K. McMahon. As sudte Company received a capital contribution of $Q,9Bpresenting the net of tax img
to WWE for the prize money awarded to the selectadestants.

14. Stockholders’ Equity

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible i@tass A common stock, on a one for one basis, yatiare at the option of the hold
The two classes are entitled to equal per shaidatids and distributions and vote together as ssaldth each share of Class B entitled tc
votes and each share of Class A entitled to one, wtcept when separate class voting is requiregpplicable law. If, at any time, any sh
of Class B common stock are beneficially owned by person other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahany descendant of either
them, any entity which is wholly owned and is cofied by any combination of such persons or angttrall the beneficiaries of which are
combination of such persons, each of those shaileswtomatically convert into shares of Class Argoon stock. Through his benefic
ownership of a substantial majority of our Classd@nmon stock, our controlling stockholder, Vincéh¢tMahon, can effectively exerci
control over our affairs, and his interests cowdftict with the holders of our Class A common $toc

F-21






Table of Contents
WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

14. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Beginning in February 2008, the Board of Directaushorized an increase in the quarterly cash dindde $0.36 per share on all Clas
common shares. The quarterly dividend on all CRssd Class B shares held by members of the McMdamily and their respective tru
remained at $0.24 per for a period of three yeaestd a waiver received from the McMahon familytteapired in February 2011. Any n
dividend waiver is subject to two things. Theffiss the receipt of the approval of the InternavBnue Service, which has been obtain€he
second is the agreement of members of the McMahuonilyf . No determination has been made by the McMahon farilgriter into a ne
waiver agreement. We paid four quarterly dividen€i$0.36 per share, or $38,724, on all Class A comrmshares and $0.24 per share
$44,919, on all Class B common shares in 2010. 8t four quarterly dividends of $0.36 per share$@6,504, on all Class A common shi
and $0.24 per share, or $45,765, on all Class Brmamshares in 2009. We paid four quarterly divideofi$0.36 per share, or $35,592, ol
Class A common shares and $0.24 per share, or@.5%8 all Class B common shares in 2008.

15. Share Based Compensation

The 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“2007 Plan”) pdew for grants of options and other forms of egbéged incentive awards
determined by the compensation committee of therdBo& Directors as incentives and rewards to eregeiemployees, directors, consult
and performers to participate in our long-term sgsc Prior to the 2007 Plan, share based compensedis governed by the Company’s Long-
Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”). In 2004, we beganubg) restricted stock units (“RSUs\hich generally vest ratably over three years.uly
2007, we began issuing performance stock units$5in addition to RSUs.

As of December 31, 2010 there were approximatélyndllion shares available for future grants unither 2007 Plan. It is our policy to is¢
new shares to satisfy option exercises and théngest RSUs and PSUs.

Stock based compensation cost was $7,559, $7,38$4856 for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. fbked recognized tax benefit w
$2,872, $2,808 and $3,023 for 2010, 2009 and 2@3®ectively.

The benefits of tax deductions in excess of reamghcompensation costs are reported as financsly fkavs and were $2,758, $133
$1,081 in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Stock Options

We have not granted any stock options since Jufié.Zthe following table summarizes stock optionvétgt for 2010:

Weighted

Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregatt
Exercise Contractue Intrinsic
Stock Options Options Price Term Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2010 192,43t $ 13.1¢ 1€ $ 421
Exercised (120,470 $ 12.97 — $ 29
Outstanding, vested and exercisable at Decemb&t0aD, 71,966 § 13.4¢ 15 $ 58
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15. Share Based Compensation (continued)

The intrinsic values of options exercised were $2B013 and $2,730 for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respdytiCash received from opti
exercises under all shabased payment arrangements totaled $1,562, $2/81®&268 for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectivelyx Genefit:
realized from tax deductions associated with stufion exercises totaled $11®133 and $1,037 for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respEgtiAt
December 31, 2010, there were no unrecognized casagien costs as all outstanding options are vested

Restricted Stock Units

The fair value of RSUs is determined based on tiraber of shares granted and the quoted price o€@mmon stock on the grant d;
The fair value of restricted stock units is recagui as expense over the service period, three,yearf estimated forfeitures, using
straightline method. We estimate forfeitures, based orohil trends, when recognizing compensation expemsl adjust the estimate
forfeitures when they are expected to differ. F@ year ended December 31, 2010, we estimate ¥haif8he current yeas'restricted stoc
units will be forfeited over the life of the grant.

During 2010, we granted 15,000 RSUs at a weightedage price per share of $15.30 and an aggregaté date fair value of $230. St
issuances were granted to officers and employegsrwour 2007 Plan. We recognized $733 of compeamsatipense associated with restri
stock units, which was classified as selling, gahand administrative expense. Tax benefits redlfrem RSU related compensation expe
totaled $279.

We granted 45,000 and 105,000 RSUs in 2009 and,2@3®ectively, at a weighted average price peresba $11.54 and $15.¢
respectively. During 2009 and 2008, we recognize®® and $1,867, respectively, of compensatiorees@ associated with restricted s
units, which was classified as selling, general addinistrative expense. During 2009 and 2008, ltamefits realized from RSU rela
compensation expense totaled $611 and $709, résggct

The following table summarizes the activity of reted stock units:

Weighted Average Gran

Restricted Stock Units Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2010 203,68t $ 14.2:
Granted 15,00 $ 15.3(
Vested (107,42 $ 15.0:
Forfeited (23,63) $ 13.6¢
Dividends 14,87 $ 15.7¢
Unvested at December 31, 2010 102,50 $ 13.6:

As of December 31, 2010 there was $354 of totabeognized compensation cost related to unvestedsR8UWe recognized ove
weightedaverage period of approximately 0.7 years. Basetherturrent restricted stock units outstandin@3b@f compensation expense
be recognized in 2011 and the remaining $71 willds®gnized from 2012 to 2013.
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15. Share Based Compensation (continued)
Performance Stock Units

The estimated grant of PSUs is communicated to @epk on the communication date, with the amounhefgrant based on achiev
predetermined financial metrics. The estimated remdf PSUs expected to be issued is adjusted glyarbased on the estimated prob:
outcome of the Comparg’performance at the end of the performance pefTibd.ultimate number of PSUs that are issued teraployee is
result of the actual performance of the Comparth@end of the performance period compared to énfopnance targets.

The fair value of PSUs is initially determined béiem the number of shares granted and the quoteel @rour common stock on the gr
date. The fair value of performance stock unitetognized as expense over the service periodpgippately three and onlealf years, net
estimated forfeitures, using the straigjhe method. We estimate forfeitures, based onohitsl trends, when recognizing compense
expense and adjust the estimate of forfeitures whey are expected to differ. For the year endedeber 31, 2010, we estimate that 8¢
the current year’s performance stock grants wilidséeited over the life of the grant.

During 2010, we issued 422,250 PSUs at a weightedage price per share of $17.01, as part of 0Q7 ZDmnibus Incentive Plan. Ba
on the financial results for the year ended Decen®ie 2010, 274,000 PSUs are expected to be issu@011 related to this grant. 1
estimated compensation expense is $3,589 and tbe ®#l vest in three annual installments beginningluly 2011. In 2010, we recogni:
$6,632 of compensation expense associated witlnpesce stock units, which is classified as sellgeneral and administrative expense.
benefits realized from PSU related compensatioresg totaled $2,520.

During 2009, we issued 586,500 PSUs at a weightethge price per share of $9.91, as part of ou7 ZD@nibus Incentive Plan. Basec
the financial results for the year ended Decemider2809, 765,000 PSUs were ultimately issued in02@lated to this grant. In 2009,
recognized $5,580 of compensation expense asswaiatie performance stock units, which is classifaiselling, general and administra
expense. Tax benefits realized from PSU relatedoemsation expense totaled $2,120.

During 2008, we issued 471,500 PSUs at a weightecage price per share of $18.83, as part of 0Q7 ZDmnibus Incentive Plan. Ba
on the financial results for the year ended Decerhe2008, approximately 310,800 PSUs were ultyassued in 2009 related to this gr

In 2008, we recognized $5,839 of compensation esg@ssociated with performance stock units, whiab elassified as selling, general
administrative expense. Tax benefits realized fRBW related compensation expense totaled $2,219.

The following table summarizes the activity of meniance stock units:

Weighted Average

Performance Stock Units Units Grant Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2010 883,21( $ 12.91
Adjustment 226,17 % 9.91
Granted 422,25(  $ 17.01
Vested (516,259 $ 13.51
Forfeited (61,589 $ 13.7:¢
Dividends 71,34( $ 16.0C
Unvested at December 31, 2010 1,025,12: $ 15.8(
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15. Share Based Compensation (continued)

As of December 31, 2010 there was $5,567 of totakengnized compensation cost related to unves&dsRo be recognized ove
weightedaverage period of approximately 0.8 years. Basedhencurrent PSUs outstanding, $3,854 of compessatkpense will t
recognized in 2011 and the remaining $1,713 wiltdmgnized during 2012 and 2013.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We provide a stock purchase plan for our employdeser the plan, all regular fulime employees may contribute up to 10% of thege
compensation (subject to certain income limitsjhi® semiannual purchase of shares of our common stock pilinehase price is 85% of 1
fair market value at certain platefined dates. As this plan is defined as compengaa charge is recorded for the difference betnbe fai
market value and the discounted price. In 2010, pwchases occurred and resulted in a $194 chammoximately 165 employees wi
participants in the stock purchase plan and thegdayees purchased approximately 57,334 sharearaf@mmon stock at an average pric
$12.42 per share. In 2009, two purchases occumddesulted in a $200 charge. Approximately 150 leyges were participants in the st
purchase plan and these employees purchased apaiteky 67,476 shares of our common stock at aregeegprice of $8.80 per share. In 2(
two purchases occurred and resulted in a $106 ehaygproximately 130 employees were participantshim stock purchase plan and tt
employees purchased approximately 46,953 shamesrafommon stock at an average price of $11.86Ipare.

16. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan cmgeisubstantially all employees. Under this plaattigipants are allowed to me
contributions based on a percentage of their salrigject to a statutorily prescribed annual lirifite make matching contributions of
percent of each participasttontributions, up to 6% of eligible compensatidfe may also make additional discretionary contidns to th
401(k) plan. Our expense for matching contributidgasthe 401(k) plan was $1,189, $1,171 and $1,136nd 2010, 2009 and 20(
respectively. The Company has not made any discraty matching contributions during 2010, 2009 @&
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17. Segment Information
Revenues derived from sales outside of North Araewere approximately $135,343, $127,096 and $135{&82010, 2009 and 20(

respectively. Revenues generated in the United ddng our largest international market, were appnately $33,932, $36,516 and $47,
for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

We do not allocate corporate overhead to eacheoéigments and as a result, corporate overheagk@aciling item in the table belc
The activities of each segment are summarized te Mo

The table presents information about the finan@allts of each segment for 2010, 2009 and 200&ssets as of December 31, 2010
December 31, 2009. Unallocated assets consist plynoé cash, investments and fixed assets.

2010 2009 2008
Net revenues
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 331,83 $ 334990 $ 331,45
Consumer Products 97,37¢ 99,74( 135,66¢
Digital Media 28,931 32,751 34,82
WWE Studios 19,507 7,671 24,51:
Total net revenues $ 477,65! $ 475,16 $ 526,45
Depreciation and amortization:
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 5657 $ 767C $ 6,37¢
Consumer Products 203 1,02¢ 1,38¢
Digital Media 1,17¢ 1,26: 1,204
WWE Studios 4 - -
Corporate 4,66¢ 4,467 4,121
Total depreciation and amortization $ 11,700 $ 14,42¢  $ 13,08:
Operating income:
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 119,26¢ $ 124,68: $ 92,38¢
Consumer Products 49,99:; 52,67 76,47
Digital Media 4,951 5,79t 6,182
WWE Studios (1,762 2,17: 7,18¢
Corporate (90,089 (108,199 (111,949
Total operating income $ 8225¢ 3 77,13 $ 70,28
As of:

December 31, 2010 December 31, 20C

Assets:
Live and Televised Entertainment $ 129,97 % 141,91!
Consumer Products 17,09t 21,52
Digital Media 5,84¢ 7,111
WWE Studios 77,97 43,18¢
Unallocated 184,83 226,88t
Total assets $ 41572¢ $ 440,62:
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18. Concentration of Credit Risk

We continually monitor our position with, and theedit quality of, the financial institutions thateacounterparties to our financ

instruments. Our accounts receivable representgaifisiant portion of our current assets and relptmcipally to a limited number
distributors, including our television, pay-pgew and home video distributors. We closely manitioe status of receivables with th
customers and maintain allowances for anticipabsdds. During the prior year, we recorded a $7¢h@rge for bad debt expense related
receivable due from a previous distribution partfidre Company closely monitors the status of reddgas with our customers and maint.
allowances for anticipated losses as deemed apatepOur total allowance for doubtful accountsanae was $12,316 as of Decembel
2010 and $11,926 as of December 31, 2009. Badedgi#inse was approximately $774 for the year endaxémber 31, 2010, and $8,558
the year ended December 31, 2009.

19. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

(1)

(@)
3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

1stQuarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4t Quarter
2010 @) @ (3)4)(5)(6) B)H(T)B)
Net revenue $ 138,72 $ 106,84: $ 109,56: $ 122,52
Cost of revenues $ 7368 $ 6309 $ 61,760 $  75,75¢
Net income $ 24,737 $ 6,251 $ 14337 $ 8,127
Earnings per common share: basic
Net income $ 03: $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.11
Earnings per common share: diluted
Net income $ 03: $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.11
2009
Net revenue $ 107,82 $ 138,79: $ 111,25 $ 117,28
Cost of revenues $ 56,437 $ 75,75C $ 60,077 $ 63,58
Net income $ 1032: $ 1987 $ 8,93¢ $ 11,16¢
Earnings per common share: basic
Net income $ 014 $ 027 $ 01z $ 0.1t
Earnings per common share: diluted
Net income $ 014 $ 027 $ 01z $ 0.1t

Our annuaWrestleManiaevent occurred on March 28, 2010 and April 5, 2089 such the results are recorded in our first tguar
2010 and our second quarter in 200&estleManiacontributed approximately $28,806 in net reven®d$,733 in cost of revenues
$8,785 in net income in Q1 2010 and $32,156 iretnues, $17,152 in cost of revenues and $9,708timcome in Q2 200!

Net income in the first quarter of 2010 includes benefit of $1,088 relating to infrastructure inibees.

Cost of revenues in the fourth and third quarteR@®9 includes the benefit of $3,631 and $1,358peetively, relating to incentiv
received relating to television and other produti

Net income in the fourth and third quarter of 2008ludes charges $4,036 and $630 respectively, relating to allowances recol
against a receivable due from a previous distrdvupartner. Also included is the benefit of $3,&r2 $1,576, respectively, relating
incentives received relating to television and ofireductions

Revenues and cost of revenues in the third quaftef10 includes $3,768 and $5,477, respectiveligting to the transition to a self-
distribution model for our WWE Studios segment. Cafsrevenues also includes the benefit of $3,98a@ting to incentives receiv
relating to television and other productio

Net income in the third quarter of 2010 includes tienefit of $3,981 relating to incentives receivelhting to television and ott
productions

Revenues and cost of revenues in the fourth quaft2®10 includes $4,998 and $5,995, respectivelating to the transition to a self



distribution model for our WWE Studios segme

(8) Included in the results for the fourth quarter 612 was the recording of an adjustment attribut&bfgrior periods which reduced cost
revenues and SG&A expenses by $863 and $497, teggdgcand as a result increased net income byt$8he Company evaluated
effects of this adjustment on quarterly and aneoakolidated financial statements and determinedtfjustment to be immaterial all
periods.
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Charges to
Balance at Expense/ Balance at
Beginning Against End of
Description of Year Revenues Deductions (1) Year
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1192¢ $ 774 $ (389 $ 12,31¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstestdrns 4,82 28,93¢ (29,489 4,27
Home video allowance for returns 5,53t 23,95¢ (23,85)) 5,63
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 471 $ 8558 $ (1,350 $ 11,92¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstestdrns 6,26¢ 28,35! (29,799 4,82
Home video allowance for returns 6,26¢ 19,09: (29,829 5,53t
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 135 $ 2521 % 83¢ $ 4,71t
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstestdrns 4,80¢ 32,59¢ (31,139 6,26¢
Home video allowance for returns 6,622 18,80¢ (29,16¢) 6,26t

(1) Deductions are comprised primarily write-offs oésific bad debts and returns.
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WWE SUBSIDIARIES

(All subsidiaries are wholly-owned, directly or inettly)
TSI Realty Company (a Delaware corporation)
Stephanie Music Publishing, Inc. (a Connecticupooation)
The World Entertainment, LLC (a Delaware limiteahlility company)*
WWE Sports, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)*
Event Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Studios, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WWE Films Development, Inc. (a Delaware corpana}i
- Eye Scream Productions (a California corporation)
- Eye Scream Man Productions Australia Pty Limitad Australia corporation)
- Marine Productions (a California corporation)
- Marine Productions Australia Pty Limited (an Anadia corporation)
- Marine 2 Productions, Inc. (a California corparaj)
- Condemned Productions, Inc. (a California corporg
- Condemned Productions Australia Pty Ltd (an Aal&trcorporation)
- WWE Films Development Funding (LA), LLC (a Lowasia limited liability company)
- WWE Films Production (LA), LLC (a Louisiana linaid liability company)
- WWE Nola, LLC (a Louisiana limited liability conamy)
- Barricade Productions Inc. (a British Columbiapzyation)
WWE Animation, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
- WWE Animation Development, Inc. (a Delaware cogiimn)
WWE Libraries, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WCW, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)
WWE Properties International, Inc. (a Delaware ooafion)

- WWE Japan LLC (a Japanese limited liability comga

- WWE Australia Pty Limited (an Australia limiteghbility company)
World Wrestling Entertainment (International) Lieit (a UK corporation)

World Wrestling Entertainment Canada, Inc. (a Céaradorporation)

*Not in operation
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement No. 333-92041, 333-92376 argi131022 on Form S-8 and No. 333-
72536 on Form S-3 of our reports dated March 3112€elating to the consolidated financial statets@md financial statement schedule of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiariénd the effectiveness of World Wrestling Entarteent, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal

control over financial reporting, appearing in tAisnual Report on Form 10-K of World Wrestling Eritggnment, Inc. and subsidiaries for the
year ended December 31, 20

/s/ Deloitte & Touche, LLP
March 3, 2011




Exhibit 31.1

Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:

[, Vincent K. McMahon, certify that:

1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-KMafrld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistaite a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, @her financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtf@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatatnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurég tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preszh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable asseraegarding the reliability of financial repodirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registisamlisclosure controls and procedures and preséntéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contiot procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetis report based on st
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regidtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registraat’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte registrans internal contre
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internal @ntver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacoimmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controgéiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refjfmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmmagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registrand’
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: March 3, 2011 By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahon

Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification required by Securities and Exchange & 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to@e802 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002:

I, George A. Barrios, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K\uafrld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omittde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdfairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtf@ periods presented in this report;

The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contemid procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatatnal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and proceduré® tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegah

b) Designed such internal control over financial reipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardeng the reliability of financial reporting arkde preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtéds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amatguiures, as of the end of the period covered Isyréport based on st
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registraat’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially @@, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte registrans internal contre
over financial reporting; and

The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @ntver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacoimmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registrant’
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: March 3, 2011 By: /s/ George A. Barrios

George A. Barrios
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.]

Certification of Chairman and CEO and CFO Purstant
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tadBe206 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkAorld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Comp&nyor the year ended December
2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the “Repor¥)ncent K. McMahon as Chairman of the Bc
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and @eoh. Barrios as Chief Financial Officer of the Quamy, each hereby certifies, purst
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuanedtidh 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, ttathe best of his or her knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the report fairly prats, in all material aspects, the financial caaditand results of operations of
Company.

By: /s/ Vincent K. McMaho

Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

March 3, 2011

By: /s/ George A. Barrios

George A. Barrios
Chief Financial Officer

March 3, 2011




